Ohio
Local Government
Innovation Fund

Collaborative Success Significance Financial

Measures Measures Measures Measures

Round 5: Application Form

Step One: Fill out this Application Form in its entirety.

Step Two: Fill out the online submission form and submit your application materials. All supplemental application materials
should be combined into one file for submission.

LGIF: Applicant Profile

Lead Agency | city of Avon Lake

Project Name | Propane Conversion of Vehicles

Type of Request | Loan

Request Amount | $46,800.00

Northeast

Number of Collaborative Partners

(including lead agency)

Project Approach | Efficiency

Project Type | Fleet Management

Oh ~ Development
lO Services Agency
Website:

E-mail:

Phone: 614 | 995 2292
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http://jobs-ohio.com/network/

Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Instructions

* Make sure to answer each question appropriately in the space provided, not exceeding the space allowed by the

answer box.

» Examples of completed applications are available on the LGIF website, found here:

http://development.ohio.gov/cs/cs_localgovfund.htm

Lead Agency

Name: City of Avon Lake
VETI[sI Street Address: 150 Avon Belden Road

IS City: Avon Lake

Zip: 44012

In what county is the lead agency located? |_grain

Ohio House District: 57 |Ohio Senate District: 13

Project Contact
Please provide information about the individual who should be contacted regarding this application.

Name: Joseph Reitz Title: Engineering Manager
\VEToII Street Address: 150 Avon Belden Road

ACGICESRI City: Avon Lake

Zip: 44012

Email Address: jrreitz@avonlake.org Phone Number: (440) 930-4101

Fiscal Agency:

Please provide information for the entity and individual serving as the fiscal agent for the project.

Fiscal Agency: City of Avon Lake

Fiscal Officer: Nancy Bryan Title: Finance Director
Street Address: 150 Avon Belden Road

City: Avon Lake

Mailing
Address:

Zip: 44012
Population
Does the applicant (or collaborative partner) represent a | |Yes | t | No
city, township, or village with a population of less than List Entity

20,000 residents?

[ lves L0 INo
List Entity

Does the applicant (or collaborative partner) represent a
county with a population of less than 235,000 residents?

Single Applicant

Is your organization applying as a single entity? | 0 |Yes | |N0

20f 20
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Collaborative Partners
Does the proposal include collaborative partners? |:|Yes El No

Applicants applying with collaborative partners are required to show proof of the partnership with a signed partnership
agreement and a resolution of support from each of the partner's governing entities. If the collaborative partner does not
have a governing entity, a letter of support from the partnering organization is sufficient. These documents must be
received by the end of the cure period in order for each entity to count as a collaborative partner for the purposes of this
application.

Nature of the Partnership

As agreed upon in the signed partnership agreement, please identify the nature of the partnership with an explanation of
how the lead agency and collaborative partners will work toegether on the proposed project.

30f20
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Lead Applicant

City of Avon Lake

Project Name

Propane Conversion of Vehicles ‘ Type of Request ‘Loan |

List of Partners

Please use the following space to list each collaborative partner who is participating in the project and is providing
BOTH a resolution of support for the Local Government Innovation Fund application and has signed the partnership

agreement.

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 1

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [efii¥a

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 2

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [efii¥a

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 3

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥a

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 4

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥a

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 5

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [eflW8

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 6

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥8

Zip:
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Lead Applicant

Project Name

City of Avon Lake
Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 7

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥8

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 8

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofiia

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 9

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥8

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 10

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii8

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 11

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥8

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 12

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥8

Zip:

Name:

Collaborative Partner # 13

Mailing Street Address:

Address:  [ofii¥8

Zip:

50f20
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request |Loan

Project Information

Provide a general description of the project, including a description of the final work product derived from the grant study
or loan implementation project. This information may be used for council briefings, program and marketing materials.

The purpose of this project is to reduce transportation fuel cost for the City of Avon Lake by converting
vehicles to run on propane in addition to gasoline. It is designed so neighboring communities can opt in at a
later date. The business model is designed to be financially self sustainable following repayment of the
initial zero interest loan , which will jump start the program. The forecast savings from substitution of
propane for gasoline is so great that the loan will be paid back within the first three years of the required
loan payment schedule.

There is a need to reduce expenditures within the City's budget. Not only will switching to propane
accomplish this, but it will extend the usable life of the vehicles, thus, saving money while reducing
emissions. The Government Innovation Fund loan is seed money to allow 5 vehicles to be converted the
first year and 3 more to be converted in the 2nd year for less out of pocket to the City than it would
otherwise cost without the loan to convert a single vehicle. Every year there after two vehicles will be
converted from savings accrued through the use of propane. By year three, there will be ten vehicles in the
fleet. This number will be maintained as decommissioned vehicles are offset by addition of new vehicles.
The vehicles will be modified to use either unleaded gasoline or propane with a flip of a switch. These
conversions are intended to lower fuel costs for the on-the-road vehicles that are driven daily for
approximately 25,000 miles per year. The fuel cost savings averages approximately $19,000 a year over
twelve years for a total savings of $230,800.00. The average cost of propane is $1.00 - $1.50 less than
gasoline. Propane presently costs approximately $2.00 per gallon including taxes. By converting to
propane, the City will lower its annual fuel costs and extend the useful life of the vehicles since propane is a
cleaner fuel. Experience by others shows it will also reduce maintenance costs due to cleaner burning
nature as compared to gasoline fueled vehicles. There is also a reduction in air emissions. Importantly, the
conversion kits are reusable on future vehicles reducing installed cost to $1,800 as compared to $6,500 for
an original kit, significantly enhancing the long term life of the project.

The conversions shall be specified for City police vehicles and for Avon Lake Municipal Utilities' trucks. The
City of Avon Lake shall prepare the bid specifications for the vehicle conversions and installation of the
propane fueling station at the Avon Lake Service Department, which already has unleaded and diesel
dispensing facilities. The specifications shall require the use of an experienced installer to use EPA certified
bi-fuel conversion kits and shall include a five year maintenance warranty on each installation, including kits.
Once the kits are installed, the vehicles will be capable of running on either propane or gasoline fuels. The
cost savings shall be measurable based on the mileage and gallons of fuel used over a given year and the
reduced maintenance costs.

The propane fueling station shall be a deliverable of this project by the fuel provider. The specifications
shall require that the winning contractor provide above ground tank(s), fueling dispenser,
operational/billing/fleet management software to operate the system, adequate in size for the number of
vehicles using the facility, and conversion kits and installation. The City of Avon Lake shall host the location
for the tank, provide electrical power to the tank vicinity and crash protection. The chosen site has nighttime
access and lighting; therefore, no additional lighting is anticipated.

We anticipate the propane conversion program will grow and include neighboring municipalities who elect to
opt in.

It may become advantageous to use a fueling station located at National Fleets of Ohio located on the
western edge of the City. This location is closer to Avon Lake Municipal Utilities to fuel their vehicles. It
would also facilitate future collaboration opportunities between the City of Avon Lake and the cities of
Sheffield Lake to the west and Avon to the south. The propane fueling center to be installed at the Service
Department located in the central south section of the City, lends itself to use by the Avon Lake Police
Department and in the future by the city of Bay Village and Avon when they are able to opt in.
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Project Information
Has this project been submitted for consideration in previous LGIF Rounds? | |Yes | g | No

If yes, in which Round(s)?

What was the project name?

What entity was the lead applicant?

Provide a summary of past efforts to implement a project to improve efficiency, implement shared services,
coproduction, or a merger (5 points).

Past examples of successful efficiency projects the City of Avon Lake has undertaken include installing
building efficiency controls through the installation of new windows, installing motion detector devices to turn
lights on and off, installing high efficiency lighting and more efficient HYAC systems. Over 16 different
building systems were installed at the new aquatic center to be efficient including the installation of light
wells to allow natural light into the men's and lady's wash rooms without turning on room lights, the
installation of automatic water facets, choice of color and materials to reflect the heat off the structure to
keep it cooler during the summer, on line registration, concession stand software to assist with inventory
control, etc. Another example is the Fire Department's use of Lorain County's 911 service in place of the
Fire Department Dispatch. Property owners were already paying for the 911 service prior to adopting the
County program. Now with the use of 911 one Firefighter per shift can be added to the Fire response team
and Paramedics without hiring an additional employee. Examples of successful collaboration among our
neighboring communities and the City of Avon Lake include the Fire District where Police and Fire
Departments have provided backup emergency services through mutual aid. This effort has been a long
standing benefit for many years past and will continue in the future. Bay Village, Avon and Sheffield Lake
have joined Avon Lake in this endeavor. Neighboring community Service Departments have also been
cooperative in sharing equipment.

Applicant demonstrates Past Success [ O] Yes | [ No

Scalable

Provide a summary of how the applicant's proposal can be scaled for the inclusion of other entities (5 points).

The business model can duplicated in other communities. The Avon Lake central fueling center is in a
strategic location for this project and for other adjoining communities who at a later date may opt in. They
have shown an interest over the last two years. The proposed location on SR 83, Avon Belden Road, is
within one mile of the Avon Service Department and less than three miles from the Bay Village Service
Department and Sheffield Lake. Billing for the propane shall be easy to expand and increase. The
specifications shall require the operator to install the necessary software to invoice individual communities
based on the vehicle. The location of the proposed Avon Lake propane station has adequate room for
expansion as other communities and school buses opt in. The contract for vehicle conversions shall also be
scaled when others opt in.. The specifications shall be written with unit price conversions per vehicle. When
other communities opt in, partners will sign a MOU.

Applicant demonstrates a Scalable project | g |Yes [_INo
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Replicable

Provide a summary of how the applicant's proposal can be replicated by other entities. A replicable project should
include a component that another entity could use as a tool to implement a similar project (5 points).

The program and implementation shall be set up in a way that would be easy to replicate. The
specifications for the vehicle conversions shall include necessary warranty terms and conditions and the
fueling location and operational setup shall be specified to simplify the operation and billing for others to
replicate. Placing the ownership, billing of fuel used and operational oversight on the propane provider shall
save Avon Lake future expansion costs and simplify operations on the City's end.

Duplicating this program in other communities shall be as simple as choosing a site, creating MOU's
between partners and bidding the project by simply changing names on the specification book. From a
replication or expansion factor this project shall be created for others to follow.

The attached spreadsheet is a very useful took listing the number of vehicles converted, number of vehicles
to decommission, miles traveled per year, cost of routine maintenance, cost of propane, cost of loan and
payment plan. This tool helps us understand the savings experienced by converting to propane AutoGas
fuel.

Applicant demonstrates a Replicable project | g |Yes | |No

| € uonoas |

uonew.oju| 108foid

Probability of Success

Provide a summary of the likelihood of the grant study recommendations being implemented. Applicants requesting an
implementation loan should provide a summary of the probability of savings from the loan request (5 points).

Alternative fuel vehicles have long been a priority for the City of Avon Lake. The City hosted two regional
propane vehicle conversion events that attracted over 100 stakeholders. Avon Lake City Council passed
two ordinances on February 11, 2013. The first authorized the Mayor to enter into a MOU with the City of
Sheffield Lake. Due to not knowing if a levy would pass at the Primary Election, Sheffield Lake was unable
to sign the MOU. The second authorized the Mayor to sign the loan Application and implement the project if
awarded the loan. The City of Avon Lake has a Sustainability Chapter in its Master Plan. The City has
implemented building efficiency measures and has requested a performance audit with the Auditor of the
State of Ohio. At this writing the City has not received the final audit findings. Propane conversion is one in
a number of steps to do more with less. Not only will there be a financial savings in fuel and maintenance
costs but there is a certain accomplishment in implementing a project that is environmentally friendly and
reduces the amount of fossil fuels used to operate. The attached chart summarizes the savings of the
propane conversion program from 2013 - 2024 even though the City plans on continuing the program
beyond 2024. The LGIF loan provides for the conversion of 5 vehicles in 2013 to propane and 3 vehicles in
2014 for a total of 8 vehicles. Every year after at least 2 vehicles will be converted. Beginning 2016 two
vehicles will be retired keeping the fleet at 10 vehicles. In actuality, there will be more conversions as other
City departments participate. The cost to convert one vehicle without the loan is $6,500. With the loan, 8
vehicles can be converted with a cash outlay of $9200. The total owed the State will be $46,800. The net
savings per year is $11,558 for 2013, $16,240 for 2014 and $20,300 every year after. Thus, the loan can
technically be paid off before the first loan payment is due in 2016.

Applicant demonstrates Probability of Success | g |Yes | |No
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Performance Audit/Cost Benchmarking
If the project is the result of recommendations from a prior performance audit provided by the Auditor of State under

Chapter 117 of the Ohio Revised Code, or is informed by a previous cost benchmarking study, please attach a copy with
the supporting documents. In the section below, provide a summary of the performance audit findings or cost bench
marking study results (5 points).

This project was not the result of a performance audit. The project is simply an effort to improve efficiencies
and reduce costs.

A cost analysis was performed by a retired engineer who specialized in project cost analysis and future
project forecasting for Union Carbide having made a career in the petro-chemical industry. He is a resident
of the City of Avon Lake and researched the probability of success for this project. It was determined that
based on average vehicle use of 25,000 miles per year and with propane costs ranging from $1.00 - $1.50
less per gallon than gasoline the project costs could be recovered in as early as 36 months. With the influx
of propane into the market through increased Ohio gas production the cost of propane is forecast to
decrease. The decrease in cost was not incorporated into this scenario. Attached are supporting
documents detailing the future cost analysis.

Prior Performance Audit or Cost Benchmarking | 0 | Yes | | No

Economic Impact

Provide a summary of how the proposal will promote a business environment through a private sector parter (5 points)
and/or provide for community attraction (3 points).

Businesses are attracted to communities that demonstrate fiscal responsibility and environmental
stewardship. The vehicle conversion program does both. The cost of propane is $1.00 - $1.50 less per
gallon than gasoline. The savings in fuel costs will fund the repayment of the loan beginning one year
earlier than required and completing repayment in three years. This project shall provide jobs to businesses
in the area and expand the City's vendor list. Among qualified converters two are located in Lorain County.
National Fleets Services of Ohio is located in Avon Lake and converts Ford fleet products. Xtreme
Performance of North Ridgeville is less than 8 miles from Avon Lake, and they convert all fleet
manufacturers. The City's first conversions will be Ford. Future conversions may include Dodge or/and
Chevrolet vehicles. Both private businesses have expressed interest in bidding on the project. From the
installation of the vehicle conversion kits to the maintenance and the fueling of these vehicles the public
sector shall benefit. All conversions and maintenance on the conversion kits and connecting hoses will be
performed by the local converters. The conversion of these vehicles will provide a fuel market for
municipalities that is currently not utilized on a fleet-wide scale. The fuel can potentially be Ohio produced
propane. This project shall also be used as a public outreach tool that illustrates how communities are
striving for financial efficiency and environmental consciousness. It is an excellent example of how
changing fuel sources can reduce emissions into the environment, reduce fueling and maintenance costs
while extending the usable life of a vehicle.

Applicant demonstrates Economic Impact | 0 |Yes | |No
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Provide a summary of how the project responds to substantial changes in economic demand for local or regional
government services. The narrative should include a description of the current and future expected servce level needs
(5 points).

Response to Economic Demand

The primary economic demand for this project is long term fuel savings. The partners in this project see the
propane bi-fuel as a way to save money, extend the useful life of the vehicles and equipment. The price of
propane is dropping as a result of increased domestic Ohio produced propane in the market place. Itis an
opportunity to demonstrate to the residents and the region that we are aggressively pursuing opportunities
to improve our financial position as we continue to have a positive impact on the environment by reducing
air emissions. It is the intent to grow this project in the future. The location of the propane fueling station site
was chosen not only for the its location but also for the ease of future expansion. There are little to no
limitations on the site. The specifications and operations of the tanks shall be the responsibility of the
vendor; therefore, when propane demand increases, the vendor shall be obligated to increase the tank size
and upgrade the software accordingly with no additional cost to the tax payers. This means that if more
propane is used, the City shall not required to expand the facility with public money. If the vendor sells more
propane, then the vendor shall be responsible to expand the ability to serve the needs.

Applicant demonstrates Response to Economic Demand | 0 |Yes | | No

| € Uonoas |
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Budget Information

General Instructions

* Both the Project Budget and Program Budgets are required to be filled out in this form.

*Consolidate budget information to fit in the form. Additional budget detail may be provided in the budget narrative or in an
attachment

* The Project Budget should detail expenses related to the grant or loan project.

» The Project Budget justification must be explained in the Project Budget Narrative section of the
application. This section is also used to explain the reasoning behind any items on the budget that
are not self explanatory, and provide additonal detail about project expenses.

* The Project Budget should be for the period that covers the entire project. The look-back period for
in-kind contributions is two years. These contributions are considered a part of the total project
costs.

« For the Project Budget, indicate which entity and revenue source will be used to fund each expense.
This information will be used to help determine eligible project expenses.

* Total Sources must equal Total Uses. Include staff time and other in-kind matches in the Total Uses
section of the budget.

sl Program Budget

¥ uoiag

» Use the Program Budget to outline the costs associated with the implementation of the program in
your community.

« Six (6) years of Program Budgets should be provided. The standard submission should include
three years previous budgets (actual), and three years of projections including implementation of the
proposed project. A second set of three years of projections (one set including implementation of
this program, and one set where no shared services occurred) may be provided in lieu of three
years previous if this does not apply to the proposed project.

*Please use the Program Budget Narrative section to explain changes in expenses and revenues,
and to defend the budget projections. If the budget requires the combining of costs on the budget
template, please explain this in the narrative.

uoneuwou| [eloueUl

Return on Investment:

» A Return on Investment calculation is required, and should reference cost savings, cost avoidance
and/or increased revenues indicated in Program Budget sections of the application. Use the space
designated for narrative to justify this calculation, using references when appropriate.

mmd FOr Loan Applications only:

» Using the space provided, outline a loan repayment structure.

« Attach three years prior financial documents related to the financial health of the lead applicant
(balance sheet, income statement and a statement of cash flows).
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Lead Applicant Citv of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehi Type of Request Loan

Project Budget

Use this space to outline all sources of funds and the uses of those funds. Both sections should include all funds related to the
project, including in-kind match contributions. Use the project budget narrative on the next page to justify the project budget,

and indicate the line items for which the grant will be used.

Sources of Funds

LGIF Request: [ $46,800

Cash Match (List Sources Below):

Source: City of Avon Lake $5,200

Source:

Source:

Source:

In-Kind Match (List Sources Below):

Source: City of Avon Lake $1,000

Source: City of Avon Lake $1,500

Source: City of Avon Lake $1,500
Total Match:| $9,200

Total Sources:| $56,000

Uses of Funds

Amount Revenue Source
Consultant Fees:
Legal Fees:

Other: Vehicle Conv. $52,000 90% LGIF, 10% Avon Lake
Other: Advertising $1,000 City of Avon Lake
Other: Spec Writing $1,500 City of Avon Lake
Other: Crash Protection [¢1 500 City of Avon Lake
Other:
Other:
Other:
Other:

| i uooasg |

UoljeW.IoU| [elIouBUI

Total Uses:|$56,000

Local Match Percentage: | 16%

* Please note that this match percentage will be included in

your grant/loan agreement and cannot be changed after

awards are made.

Local Match Percentage = (Match Amount/Project Cost) * 100 (10% match required)
[0]10-39.99% (1 point) [__]40-69.99% (3 points) [_]70% or greater (5 points)
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Lead Applicant City of Avon Lake
Project Name Propane Conversion of Vehi Type of Request Loan

Project Budget Narrative: Use this space to justify any expenses that are not self-explanatory.

Budget items not explained in the project narrative include the following:

Advertisement $1000: Avon Lake generally advertises for bids in The Morning Journal. The notices shall also be
mailed to known firms that can facilitate this project.

Specification Writing $1500: Preparation of the advertisement for bids shall be done in-house with the Avon Lake
Engineering Department. Specifications shall be formatted to other similar projects but modified to meet the
demands of this project.

Crash Protection $1,500: The location of the proposed propane fuel tanks shall necessitate crash protection for
the above ground tanks. The City shall consider the use of either concrete barriers and/or a combination of 8 inch
diameter steel posts filled with concrete. The existing facility utilizes the use of steel posts.

| # UoNoaS |

uoljeWIoU| [BIoUBUI
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Lead Applicant

Citv of Avon Lake

Project Name

Propane Conversion of Vehicles

Type of Request Loan

Program Budget

Actual Projected Fy_2013 Fy _2014 Fy _2015
Expenses Total Program Expenses Total Program Expenses Total Program Expenses
Salary and Benefits $1,500
Contract Services $32,500 $19,500 $13,000
Occupancy (rent, utilities, maintenance)
Training & Professional Development
Insurance
Travel
Capital & Equipment Expenses
Supplies, Printing, Copying & Postage
Evaluation
Marketing
Conferences, meetings, etc.
Administration
*Other - Advertisement $1,000
*Other - Crash Protection $1,500
*Other -
TOTAL EXPENSES $36,500 $19,500 $13.000
Revenues Revenues Revenues

Contributions, Gifts, Grants, & Earned Revenue

Local Government: Avon Lake $3,250 $1,950
Local Government: AvOn Lake $4,000
Local Government:
State Government $29,250 $17,550
Federal Government
*Other -
“Otner - Savings from Propane $11,558 $16,240 $20,300
*Other -
Membership Income
Program Service Fees
Investment Income
TOTAL REVENUES $48.058 $35.740 $20.300
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Lead Applicant

Citv of Avon Lake

Project Name

Propane Conversion of Vehicles

|Type of Request | Loan

Actual Projecte

Program Budget

Fy 2016

Fy 2017

Fy 2018

Expenses

Total Program Expenses

Total Program Expenses

Total Program Expenses

Salary and Benefits

Contract Services

Occupancy (rent, utilities, maintenance)
Training & Professional Development
Insurance

Travel

Capital & Equipment Expenses
Supplies, Printing, Copying & Postage
Evaluation

Marketing

Conferences, meetings, etc.
Administration

*Other -

*Other -

*Other -

$3,600

$3,600

$3,600

TOTAL EXPENSES

$3.600

$3.600

$3.600

Revenues

Contributions, Gifts, Grants, & Earned Revenue

Revenues

Revenues

Local Government:
Local Government:
Local Government:
State Government
Federal Government
*Other -
*Otner - Savings from Propane $20,300 $20,300 $20,300
*Other -
Membership Income
Program Service Fees
Investment Income
TOTAL REVENUES $20.300 $20.300 $20.300
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Lead Applicant | City of Avon Lake

Project Name | Propane Conversion of Vehicles |Type of Request | Loan |

Program Budget

Use this space to justify your program budget and/or explain any assumptions used for the budget projections. These projections should be based on research, case studies, or industry

standards and include a thoughtful justification.

The intent of this project is to convert five (5) vehicles in 2013 , three (3) more vehicles in 2014 and an additional two in 2015 for a total of ten (10)
vehicles at program end. The vehicle breakdown is as follows:

2013 - Avon Lake Police Department three (3) Ford 2011 Crown Victorias; Avon Lake Municipal Utilities 2013 Ford F250 truck and F350 truck.
2014 & 2105, Avon Lake Police Department shall purchase new vehicles. These vehicles shall be either Dodge Chargers, Chevy Tahoes, Chevy
Caprices or other similar vehicles.

It is assumed that the vehicles will accrue the minimum annual miles historically at 25,000 mi/yr Avon Lake and that propane tanks will be refilled as
needed.

The timeline for the budget is accurate to the date of this application. We are assuming that the State of Ohio Bid for Police Vehicles will remain as listed
above for model and make. The only assumptions are as to the vehicles available for 2014 & 2015. Since Ford dropped the Crown Victoria from the
product line, many communities such as Avon Lake need to explore other, comparable vehicles on the State of Ohio Bid List.

See page 18 for detailed discussion of economic analysis for ten years.

Section 4: Financial Information Scoring

m(5 points) Applicant provided complete and accurate budget information and narrative justification for a total of six fiscal years.

| |(3 points) Applicant provided complete and accurate budget information and for at least three fiscal years.

I:l(1 point) Applicant provided complete and accurate budget information for less than three fiscal years.
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Lead Applicant | City of Avon Lake
Project Name | Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request | Loan

Return on Investment is a performance measure used to evaluate the efficiency of an investment. To derive the

expected return on investment, divide the net gains of the project by the net costs. For these calculations, please
use the implementation gains and costs, NOT the project costs (the cost of the feasibility, planning, or management
study)--unless the results of this study will lead to direct savings without additional implementation costs. The gains
from this project should be derived from the prior and future program budgets provided, and should be justified in
the return on investment narrative.

Return on Investment Formulas:

Consider the following questions when determining the appropriate ROI formula for your project. Check the box of
the formula that you are using to determine your ROI. These numbers should refer to savings/revenues illustrated in
projected budgets.

Do you expect cost savings from efficiency from your project?

) Total $ Saved
O Use this formula: * 100 = ROI
Total Program Costs

Do you expect cost avoidance from the implementation of your project/program?

) Total Cost Avoided
O Use this formula: * 100 = ROI
Total Program Costs

Do you expect increased revenues as a result of your project/program?

Total N R
(O use this formuta: ol oW REVeNY® _ « 100 =ROI
Total Program Costs

Do you expect some combination of savings, cost avoidance, or increased revenue as a result of
your project/program? (Total Gains combines $ Saved, Costs Avoided, and New Revenue)
Total Gains

@ Use this formula: Total Program Costs 100 = ROI

$230,798
Expected Return on Investment = * 100 = 228%
$101,400

Expected Return on Investment is:

[ | [Less than 25% (10 points) [ [ 25%-75% (20 points) (0] Greater than 25% (30 points)

Questions about how to calculate ROI? Please contact the Office of Redevelopment at 614-995-2292 or
Igif@development.ohio.gov
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Lead Applicant | City of Avon Lake

Project Name | Propane Conversion of Vehicles | Type of Request iLoan |

Return on Investment Justification Narrative: In the space below, describe the nature of the expected return on
investment, providing justification for the numbers presented in the ROI calculation. This calculation should be
based on the savings, cost avoidance, or increased revenues shown in the program budgets on the preceeding

pages. Use references when appropriate to justify assumptions used for cost projections.

This project will generate a return to the City through a fuel cost avoidance, as propane is cheaper than gasoline
and provides nearly the same average mileage. Rather than attempt to escalate prices for either fuel, as well as
the conversion kits, we elected to do all calculations without allowance for inflation or other factors. We believe it
is likely that the spread between gasoline and propane is more likely to widen with time; consequently, the
assumption that neither changes into the future is conservative for the analysis.

Average mileage for Avon Lake police cruisers running on gasoline was obtained from city records and equaled
12.7 mpg. Average mileage for the same vehicles owned and operated by other police in other portions of the
country but running on propane was used was 11.1 mpg, as documented from those sources. Actual mileage
strongly effects the calculated ROI.

Economic justification for conversion of city vehicles to bi-fuel capability was done examining a ten year period of
managed conversions. Practically, life expectancy for a police cruiser is 100,000-125.000 mi. For the city of Avon
Lake, who averages 25,000 mi/yr for cruisers, this forecasts a useful life of 4-5 years. Consequently, a plan was
established whereby a mix of 2011 and 2013, for a total of five existing vehicles, would be converted in the first
year. Inthe second year, three new 2014 vehicles would be converted increasing the total fleet to eight. In year
three, two additional new conversions will be done, using funds from accrued savings, bringing the total fleet to
ten. Thereafter, each year two vehicles would be retired and their bi-fuel equipment removed and installed on two
new vehicles, maintaining a ten vehicle fleet throughout the project period. Costs for salvaging and reusing the
equipment will be paid for out of cost savings accrued.

Once the loan has been repaid, Avon Lake will net an annual savings of $16,700 per year. Effectively, the state
loan provides necessary seed capital to initiate the program, which then pays for itself thereafter.

Currently, propane has a price advantage over ULR gasoline of $1.30/gal. Avon Lake experience shows that
Crown Vic cruisers average 12.7 mi/gal. Experience from police in other parts of the country, both northern and
southern locations, indicates Crown Vic average mileage using propane to be 11.1 mi/gal. Combined effects
forecast that using propane will allow the City to operate the bi-fuel fleet for 69% of costs for gasoline.

Propane is likely to remain at a cost advantage to gasoline due to increasing supplies from increased natural gas
production. In particular, natural gas from local fracturing efforts contains greater LPG content than natural gas
from Gulf Coast production. Consequently, it is more likely that propane price may fall slightly due to increasing

supply.

Gasoline, being a function of crude oil cost is likely to remain steady. World wide demand for crude, currently
down due to reduced economic activity, will increase with recovering global economies, most notably China.
While domestic production is increasing, this phenomena will help with US balance of payments but is not likely to
result in lowering price.

For the analysis, we chose to keep propane and gasoline prices constant throughout the project period. We
recognize that prices will change but believe those changes will generally be to the benefit of propane, which
makes our analysis conservative

Because the loan repayment is a cost paid out of net cost savings, ROI varies year by year. Beginning the first
year of loan repayment, ROI through that year equals 70% calculated as sum of total project investment divided by
the sum of total benefits accrued. Once the loan is repaid, net cost savings exceed investment cost in every year,
and ROl increases in every year forward. Because we planned this project based upon a ten year life, we elected
to report the ROI in this request as that at the end of the plan period; although, the project is self perpetuating and
financially self sustaining out of the savings enjoyed from the use of propane fuel. See attached spreadsheet.
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Lead Applicant | City of Avon Lake
Project Name | Propane Conversion of Vehicles Type of Request Loan

Please outline your preferred loan repayment structure. At a minimum, please include the following: the entities
responsible for repayment of the loan, all parties responsible for providing match amounts and an alternative
funding source (in lieu of collateral). Applicants will have two years to complete their project upon execution of the
loan agreement, and the repayment period will begin upon the final disbursement of the loan funds. A description
of expected savings over the term of the loan may be used as a repayment source.

The City of Avon Lake is responsible for the repayment of the loan.
The City of Avon Lake is responsible for providing matching funds.

If the City of Avon Lake is awarded the loan, then they would convert 5 vehicles to propane in 2013 at a total
investment of $36,500 with a LGIF Loan of $29,250. In 2014 3 vehicles will be converted to propane at a total
investment of $19,500.

The LGIF Loan would be paid back from the net savings a year from converting and using propane instead of
gasoline. In 2013 the savings would be $11,558 and in 2014 the savings would be $16,240, and in 2015 and
going forward the savings would be $20,300 based on traveling 25,000 miles per year with a propane cost of
$1.96. With this business model the loan will be paid within three years or at the latest 2017. See the expense
and revenue sheet on pages 14 and 15.

As has been said before on page 6 of this application, The fuel cost savings over twelve years totals $230,800.

Our economic analysis was prepared on the basis that the loan be repaid as fast as accrued savings allow. Our
plan is to monitor the mileage of converted vehicles and compute savings accrued based upon prevailing prices
for propane and gasoline. Gasoline avoidance charges will be computed from historical mpg of 12.7 and actual
miles used to each vehicle. Propane costs will be actual experience.

If accrued savings fail to cover minimum repayments required, the necessary balance will be paid from the
General Fund of the City.

Applicant demonstrates a viable repayment source to support loan award. Secondary source can be in the form of

a debt reserve, bank participation, a guarantee from a local entity, or other collateral (i.e. emergency, rainy day, or
contingency fund, etc).
|:| Applicant clearly demonstrates a Applicant does not have a secondary

secondary repayment source (5 points) repayment source (0 points)
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Lead Applicant

Citv of Avon Lake

Project Name

Propane Conversion of Vehicles

Type of Request | Loan

Collaborative Measures

Population

Scoring Overview

Section 1: Collaborative Measures
Description

Applicant's population (or the population of the area(s) served) falls within one
of the listed categories as determined by the U.S. Census Bureau. Population
scoring will be determined by the smallest population listed in the application.
Applications from (or collaborating with) small communities are preferred.

Applicant
Self Score

Max Points

Participating Entities

Past Success

Applicant has executed partnership agreements outlining all collaborative
partners and participation agreements and has resolutions of support. (Note:
Sole applicants only need to provide a resolution of support from its governing
entity.

Section 2: Success Measures
Applicant has successfully implemented, or is following project guidance from a

shared services model, for an efficiency, shared service, coproduction or
merger project in the past.

Scalable

Applicant's proposal can be scaled for the inclusion of other entities.

Replicable

Applicant's proposal can be replicated by other local governments.

Probability of Success

Performance Audit
Implementation/Cost
Benchmarking

Applicant provides a documented need for the project and clearly outlines the
likelihood of the need being met.

Section 3: Significance Measures

The project implements a single recommendation from a performance audit
provided by the Auditor of State under Chapter 117 of the Ohio Revised Code
or is informed by cost benchmarking.

Economic Impact

Applicant demonstrates the project will promote a business environment (i.e.,
demonstrates a business relationship resulting from the project) and will
provide for community attraction (i.e., cost avoidance with respect to taxes).

Response to Economic
Demand

Financial Information

The project responds to current substantial changes in economic demand for
local or regional government services.

Section 4: Financial Measures

Applicant includes financial information (i.e., service related operating budgets)
for the most recent three years and the three year period following the project.
The financial information must be directly related to the scope of the project
and will be used as the cost basis for determining any savings resulting from
the project.

Local Match

Percentage of local matching funds being contributed to the project. This may
include in-kind contributions.

Expected Return

Applicant demonstrates as a percentage of savings (i.e., actual savings,
increased revenue, or cost avoidance ) an expected return. The return must be
derived from the applicant's cost basis.

Repayment Structure
(Loan Only)

Applicant demonstrates a viable repayment source to support loan award.
Secondary source can be in the form of a debt reserve, bank participation, a
guarantee from a local entity, or other collateral (i.e., emergency fund, rainy
day fund, contingency fund, etc.).

Total Points




BY: Mrs. Fenderbosch TEMP NO: 10111

ORDINANCE NO. 13-2013

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A
LOAN APPLICATION WITH THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT

FUND OF THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT FOR

A PROPANE GAS CONVERSION PROGRAM, AND AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE LOAN, IF APPROVED, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Avon Lake wishes to enter into a
Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Sheffield Lake
for a shared propane gas fueling station to be located
within the borders of the City of Avon Lake for city owned
vehicles converted to a bi-fuel of gas and propane, and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Development has
created the Local Government Innovation Fund to offer
communities financial assistance in the form of loans to
create more efficient and effective service delivery within
their areas, and

WHEREAS, projects are designed to facilitate improved
business environments and promote community attraction with
their plans for efficiency, collaboration, and shared
services, and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that partnering with
communities will save money and provide for efficient
services to their constituents with assistance from this
program, and

WHEREAS, the City of Avon Lake wishes to apply for a
loan from the Local Government Innovation Fund through the
Ohio Department of Development, and

WHEREAS, if the loan is approved by the Ohio
Department of Development, the City of Avon Lake wishes to
move ahead with the propane gas conversion program as
outlined in the Memorandum of Understanding with the City
of Sheffield Lake, now therefore:;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AVON LAKE,
STATE OF OHIO:

Q/ofm ¢ Orc()rlrl 4Nl




Section No. 1: That the Mayor of the City of Avon Lake
is hereby authorized to sign a loan application with the
Local Government Innovation Fund through the Ohio
Department of Development.

Section No. 2: That if the loan from the Ohio
Department of Development, Local Government Innovation
Fund, to the City of Avon Lake and the City of Sheffield
Lake is approved, the Mayor is authorized to accept the
loan on behalf of the City of Avon Lake and to execute and
deliver such documents as he may deem necessary or
appropriate in order to obtain such loan funds for the City
of Avon Lake and move forward with the propane gas
conversion program.

Section No. 3: That it is found and determined that
all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating
to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this
Council and any of its committees which resulted in such
formal actions, were in meetings open to the public, in
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section No: 4: That this ordinance is hereby declared
to be an emergency measure, the emergency being the
necessity of having the loan application in place to meet
the March 1, 2013 application deadline in order to move
ahead with the project to convert City owned vehicles to
alternative clean fuel to improve the environment and to
save fuel costs, thus for the health, safety, and welfare
of the residents of Avon Lake. Therefore, this ordinance
shall be in full force and effect from and immediately
after its passage and approval by the Mayor.

PASSED: 2/11/13 &Q\qﬂﬁ§<;;.%;(Jti)ﬂ“ﬁkﬂﬁp_

President of Council

POSTED: 2/15/13 2/12/13
‘ o S : Approved

_ATTEST: @M@m / jf“w%%

$lerk of Councit 7/ Mayof Jc TV (/
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and investments with fiscal
and escrow agenls

Taxes receivable

Accounls receivable

Accrued inlerest receivable

Special assessments receivable

Due from other governments

Interfund receivable

Materials and supplies inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payabie
Retainage payable

Accrued salaries, wages and benefils
Due to other governments

Interfund payable

Unearned revenue

Compensated absences

Total iabilities

Fund balances

Reserved for inventories
Reserved for prepaid expenses
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, reported in
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO
LORAIN COUNTY

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Pool

Income Tax Reconstruction Debl Service

General Transfer Fund Fund Fund
$ 3,300,955 $ 3,978,443 $ 2,222,484 $ 330,254
3,497,705 2,452 154 - 296,207
81,387 - - -
- - - 2,857,406
983,208 - - 16,345
11,626 - - 252,252
59,717 - - -
534,720 - - -
$ 8,469,318 $ 6,430,597 $ 2,222,484 $ 3,752,464
$ 92,585 $ - $ 307,466 $ -
- - 118,797 -
177,564 - - -
195,120 - - -
4,541,822 1,422,030 - 3,169,958
20,091 - - -
5,027,192 1,422,030 426,263 3,169,958
59,717 - - -
534,720 - - -
260,041 - 1,540,517 -
2,587,648 - - -
- 5,008,567 - -
- - - 582,506
- - 255,704 -
3,442,126 5,008,567 1,796,221 582,506
$ 8,469,318 $ 6,430,597 $ 2222484 $ 3,752,464

16

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial slatements.
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Olher Tolal
Governmenlal Governmenlal
Funds Funds
$ 4,647,592 $ 14,479,728

55,336 55,335
1,369,957 7,616,023

750 82,137

100,940 100,940
497,914 3,365,320
876,076 1,875,629

35,500 299,378

103,997 163,714

- 534,720

$ 7,688,061 $ 28,562,924
$ 336,545 $ 736,606
61,063 179,860

62,933 240,497

307,427 502,547
299,378 299,378
2,768,588 11,902,398

- 20,091

3,835,934 13,881,377
103,997 163,714

- 534,720

407,637 2,208,195

- 2,587,648

1,951,781 6,960,348

- 582,506

1,388,712 1,644,416
3,852,127 14,681,647

$ 7,688,081 § 28,562,924
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CITY OF AVON LAKE, CHIO
LORAIN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Fool
hcome Tax Reconstruction Debt Service
General Transfer Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Property and olher local taxes $ 4,083,673 $ - $ - $ 310,931
Municipal income taxes - 7,766,697 - -
Inlergovernmental revenue 1,971,985 - - 41,575
Special assessments - - - 334,612
Charges for services 347,563 - - -
Licenses and permits 203,033 - - -
Fines and forfeits 266,215 - - -
Interest - - - 23,410
Mscellaneous 63,038 - - 11,466
Total revenues 6,935,507 7,766,597 - 721,994
Expendilures
Current
Security of persons and properly 5,299,314 - - -
Public health and w elfare 73,700 - - -
Leisure time aclivities 560,394 - 426,263 -
Cormmunity environment 298,491 - - -
Basic utilities (2.252) - - -
Transportation 3,182,927 - - -
General government 2.415,893 207,548 - 18,117
Capital cutlay - - 2,277,516 -
Debt service
Bond principal - - - 755,004
Loan principal - - - 56,680
Capital lease principal 28,001 - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 472,851
Tolal expenditures 11,876,498 207,548 2,703,779 1,302,652
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (4,940,991} 7,559,049 (2,703,779) {580,658)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers-in 6,000,000 - - 599,047
Bond proceeds - - 4,500,000 15,000
Loan proceeds - - - -
Capital lease proceeds 59,291 - - -
Transfers-out (706,203) (8,000,000} - {10,848}
Total olher financing sources (uses) 5,353,088 (8,000,000} 4,500,000 603,199
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and olher sources (uses) 412,097 (440,951) 1,796,221 22,541
Fund balances, beginning of year 3,030,029 5449,518 - 559,965
Fund balances, end of year $ 3442126 $ 5,008,567 3 1,798,221 $ 582,506

See the accompanying noles to the basic linancial statements.
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Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

$ 1,256,199 $ 5,650,803
- 7,766,597
2,038,689 4,052,249
82,594 417,206
7,510 355,073
40,663 243,696
48,155 314,370
254,801 278,211
115,534 190,038
3,844,145 19,268,243
2,527,561 7,826,875
38,028 111,728
538,639 1,545,296
1,922 300,413
274186 25,164
2,135,898 5,318,815
190,116 2,831,674
1,445,796 3,723,312
- 765,004

- 56,680

- 28,031

32,659 505,510
6,938,025 23,028,502
{3.093,880) {3,760,259)
3,265,951 9,864,998
1,415,000 5,930,000
100,000 100,000

- 59,291
(1,5586,878) {10,273,929)
3,224 073 5,680,360
130,193 1,920,101
3,721,934 12,761,446
$ 3,852,127 $ 14,681,547

21




CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO
LORAIN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business-Type Activilies - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewar Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,493,149 $ 2,084,803 $ 8577952
Receivables
Accounts 653,978 500,454 1,154,432
Special assessments - 248,045 248,045
Due from other governments 1,368,364 1,128,465 2,496,829
Materials and supplies inventories 39,230 23,254 62,484
Restricled cash and cash equivalents 1,305,570 - 1,305,570
Unamortized bond issue costs and discounts 447,946 10,317 458,263
Investment in joint venture 2,326,262 - 2,326,262
Nondepreciable capital assels 671,708 6,171,598 6,843,306
Depreciable capital assets, net 35,971,618 16,659,736 52,631,354
Tolal assets 49,277,825 26,826,672 76,104,497
Liabilities
Current
Accounts and conlracls payable 23,424 751,146 774,570
Accrued salaries, w ages and benefits 34,392 45,682 80,074
Due fo olher governmenls 154,250 111,021 265,271
Accrued inlerest payable 123,083 16,3 139,474
Capital lease payable - 50,094 50,094
General obiigation bonds payable 241,996 196,306 438,302
OWDA loans payable 679,345 204,286 883,631
Revenue bonds payable 855,000 - 855,000
Compensated absences 61,301 62,662 123,963
Total current liabiitities 2,172,791 1,437,588 3,610,379
Long-term liabilities
Capital lease payable - 52,477 52,477
General obligation bonds payable 2,566,719 4,289,410 6,856,129
OWDA loans payable 7.744,002 6,513,992 14,257,994
Revenue bonds payable 9,340,000 - 9,340,000
Compensated absences 197,220 146,972 344,192
Total long-term liabilities 19,847,941 11,002,851 30,850,792
Total liabilities 22,020,732 12,440,439 34,461,171
Net assets
Investment in capital assets, net of refated debt 15,216,264 11,524,769 26,741,033
Restricted for debt services 1,305,570 - 1,305,570
Unrestricted 10,735,259 2,861,464 13,596,723
Total net assets $ 27,257,093 $ 14,386,233 $ 41,643,326

See the accompanying notes lo the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AVON LAKE, CHIO
LORAIN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business-Type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sew er Total

Operating revenues

Charges for services 3 8,671,237 $ 2,995,027 $ 11,666,264

Other 149,199 - 149,199
Tolal operating revenues 8,820,436 2,995,027 11,815,463
Operating expenses

Personal services 1,673,481 1,665,986 3,339,467

Contractual services 206,931 2,588 209,519

Suppiies and materials 3,091,564 386,188 3,477,753

Depreciation 1,099,636 695,335 1,784,971
Total operating expenses 6,071,612 2,750,008 8,821,710
Operating income {loss) 2,748,824 244,929 2,993,763
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 97,008 22,882 119,890

Intergovernmental revenue 139,497 1,128,465 1,267,962

Loss on disposal of capital assets (21,239) - (21,239)

lnterest and fiscal charges {1,201,968) {390,660) {1,592,628)
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) {886,702) 760,687 (226,015}
Income before contributions and transfers 1,762,122 1,005,616 2,767,738
Transfers-in 11,500 1,010,038 1,021,538
Transfers-out (587,690) {24,917) (612,607)

(576,190) 985,121 408,931

Change in net assets 1,185,932 1,990,737 3,176,669
Net assets, beginning of year 26,071,161 12,395,496 38,466,657
Net assels, end of year $ 27,257,093 § 14,386,233 $ 41,643,326

See the accempanying noles to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO
LORAIN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business-Type Activilies - Enterprise Funds

Cash flow s from operaling activities:
Receipts from customers and users $
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow s from noncapital financing activilies:
ntergovernmenlal revenue
Transfers

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing aclivities

Cash flow s from capital and related financing activilies:
Proceeds from OWDA loans payable
Payment on capital lease
Mortgage revenue bond payments
OWDA loans payments
Bond principal payments
Interest payments
Acquisition of fixed assets

Net cash (used in} capital and related
financing activities

Cash flow s frominvesting aclivities:
Interest incoms

Net cash provided by investing aclivities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivaients

Equity in cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year

Equity in cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

Water Sewer Total
8,846,239 $ 3,033,791 § 11,880,030
(3,327,035) (1,771) {3,328,806)
(1,685,573) (1,819,870) (3,505,443)
3,833,631 1,212,150 5,045,781

237,936 - 237,936
(576,190) 285,121 408,931
(338,254) 285,121 646,867

- 3,691,999 3,691,999
- (47,818) (47,818)
(825,000) - (825,000)
(635,321) (250,087) {885,408)
(511,558) (263,438) {774,996)
(1,151,475) (381,310) (1,532,785)
(669,145) (5,583,606) {6,242,751)
(3,782,499) (2,834,260) {6,616,759)
97,008 22,882 119,890
97,008 22,882 119,890
(190,114) (614,107) {804,221)
7,988,833 2,698,910 10,687,743
7,798,719 $ 2,084,803 $ 9,883,522

See lhe accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO
LORAIN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Concluded})

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Waler Sew er Total
Reconciiiation of operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operaling income (loss) $ 2,748,624 $ 244,929 $ 2,993,753
Adjustments:
Depreciation 1,099,636 595,335 1,794 971
Changes in net assets (increase) decrease and
liabilities increase (decrease)
Accounts receivable and other 25,803 {2,235) 23,568
Special assessmenl receivable - 41,000 41,000
Material and supplies inventories 54,866 {7,578} 47,308
investment in joint venlure (24,544) . - {24,544)
Accounts and contracls payable {50,447) 339,768 289,321
Retainage payable {11,484} (93,960) (105,444)
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 1,173 12,201 13,374
Due to other governments (6.874) (8,275) (15,149)
Conpensaled absences {3,342) {9,035) (12,377)
Net cash provided by operating activities $  3,8338631 $ 1,212,150 $ 5045781

Sea the accompanying notes lo the basic financial statements.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2010

ASSEIS

Bqtuty in Pooled Cash and Cash quuvalents

Cash and Cash Fquwalents
With Fscrow Agents

Materials and Supplies Inventory
Accrued Interest Receivable

Accounts Receivable
Interfiind Receivable

Intergovermnmental Recelvable

Prepaid Items

Income Taxes Recelvable e

Propeity Taxes Receivable

Special Assessments Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILII‘IES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities: .
Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits
Intergovemmental Payable

Retainage Payable
Interfund Payable
Deferred Revenue
Compensated Absences
Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Eucumbranc’e_s
- Inventory
. Prepaid Items
Unreserved:.

Undesxgnatecl Reportecl in:

General Fund

Special Revenue I unds .

* Debt Service Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balarice

T : Other " Total .
General ' . Income Tax Gowrnmental Governmental
Fund . Transfer Funds . ) Tunds
$3,438,566 $3,142969  §- 4_,806,_738 $ 11,388,273
L - 57,553 57,553
59,093 - 130 486 - - 189,579
- - C. 62,694 62,694
203,337 - - : -203,337
24,126 - 278,987 303,113
776,448 - 637,225 1,413,673
34,616 : = © U766 41,782
. 3,027,005 e 3,027,005
3,924,269 - 1,867,991 5,792,260
: o : - 2,952,420 2,952,420
¥ 8,459,855 $6,169974 - $ 10,801,860 $ 25431,689
“$ 133,919 b - $ 82,801 8 216,720
210,436 - 57,698 268,184
213,095 - 291,560 504,655
- - . 26,174 26,174
- - 303,113 303,113
4,708,872 2,231,961 5,280,510 12,221,343
5,867 - - 5,867
5,272,239 2,231,961 6,041,856 13,546,056
137,555 - 179,810 317,365
59,093 - 130,486 189,579
34,016 - T 7,766 - 41,782
- 2,956,952 - . 2,956,952
- 3,938,013 1,889,978 5,827,991
- - ‘587,008 587,008
- o 1,964,956 1,964,956
3,187,616 3,938,013 4,760,004 11,885,633

) $8459 855

_$6,169974

$ 10,301,860 .

‘$ 25,431,689

The notes to the ﬁnam:lal statements aré an mtegrai part of tlus statement
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City of Aven Lake, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

S et et ot
S o " General © Income Tax Governmental = Governmental’
Fund :,j Transfer Funds ~:  Tunds -
Property and Other laxes UL L U833 8 - 0 8 Le21569 - % 5,378,941
Income Taxeés ; : 7 o - . 7308383 : - 7,308,383
Intérgovemmental B -t 2,580,892 . - 1,978,407 - 4,559,299
Interest P : o — el S 333,840 0 333,840
Licenses and Penmits -~ - =~ - 297912 - - 47051 - 344,963
Fines and Forfeitures - .. o 369,260 - ' 74,685 <. 443,945
Charges for Services: . ... R 655,003 T 7,190 ¢ -, 662, 193 -
Special Assessmenis . o ST T . 402,899 - 402, 899
All Other Revenues & - o C 114,264 . Cw 43,724 - - 157, 988
Total Revenues o S 7,774,703 7,308,383 4,509,365 - - - 19,592,451
EXPENDITURES . o S . : :
Security of Persons and Propeﬂ;y o 76,390,305 - 2,150,016 : : - 8,516,321
Public Health and Wélfare ~ ST 7300 - 54470 - - 128,170
Leisure Time Activities o 718471 - 425069 - 1,143,540
Community Environment . . . 383,005 - _ 4,033 - - - 387,038
Basic Utility Services T 633357 - 2475 - - . 635832
Transportation o 2,754,130 - 2,428,964 ©.5,183,094
General Government . o 234],1m - 163,635 =~ 2,504,806
Capital Cutlay S . - - 1466267 1,466,267
Debt Service: - S . - - : . ) C ]
 Principal Retirement - - S e 23000 - 940,666 . 942,966
- Interest and FlscalChalges S _ - 3, 593 ' - © 845785 649,378
- Bond Issuancc Costs -+ - - S - 92,319 92,319
Total Expenchtun es - 13,306,032 : - 8,373,699 21,679,731
Ibcess of Revenues (Und_e_r)_ Expendltures (5,531,329) - 7,308,383 (3,864,334) (2,087,280)
OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES (USES) o S : o
Inception of Capital Lease™ : 12,247 - - e 12247
Promissary Notes Issued . - - - ' 64,500 - 64,500
Reﬁmding Bonds Issued - R o - - ' 4,980,000 o :4,980;000'
Premiumon Bonds Issued ~ ' : - - ' 109,961 .. - 109,961
Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow Account - - o (4,993270) - .(4,993,270)
Transfer In _ . e 5, 889 993 D om 3,049,491 - 8,939,484
Transfer Qut - L (625,421) (8,378,937) (817,198) - . (9,821,556)
Total Other Fiuancing Sources (Uses) . 5,276,819 (8,378,937) 2,393,484 . (708,634)
Net Change in Fund Balances = - . S (254,510) (1,070,554 - (1,470,850) - (2,795,914)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year : 3442,126 5,008,567 6,230,854 14,681,547

FundBalances - End of Year S $3,187,616-  $3,938,013 $ 4,760,004 - § 11,885,633

T hé I_lOt.GS to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2010

BllsmeSs-Type Ach\ines - Eltel prise Fund.s

S Water Sewer Total . .
ASSETS : '
Current Assets: o ) - S o S
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equlvalenls : -3 - 6,193,844 $ - 3219158 3 -9413,002.
Materials and Supplies Inventory : S .. 78,559 .0 9,450 786,009
Accrued Interest Recewable . . : 23,942 © 6,060 30,002 -
Accounts Reeceivable o . ' 678,991 537,878 1,216,869
Interfund Receivable -~ = LT T 800,000 D 800,000
Intergovemmental Receivable .. - S e : 1,712,475 - 1,712,475
Prepaid [ters I o 15,053 3,959 L 19,012,
Special Assessments Recelvable . L L - _ 217215 (217,215
Total Current Asscts : i 9,500,864 © 3,993,720 . 13,494,584
Noncurrent Assets:

Restricled Assets: ’ .. . . T,
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Eqmvalcnts S 1,305,583 - 1,305,583
Defemred Charges . o : 430,824 - 9,028 ~ 439,852 :
Investiment in Joint Venture . : 2,362,875 - 2,362,875
Capital Assets: : . S : S o e

- Land : : S 671,708 993,677 .. 1,665,385 .
. Conslruction in Progress . ) o - 25,987,249 125,987,249
" Depreciable Capital Assets, Net ofDepreCJatlon 34,926,849 16,012,194 50,939,043
Tofal Noncurrent Assets 39,697,839 43,002,148 82,699,987 -
Total Assets _ S o 49,198,703 46,995,868 96,194,571
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities: ) ) ) )
Accounts Payable - S 41,838 117,101 158,939
Accrued Wages and Benefits - : 44397 - 56,533 100,930
Compensated Absences Payable : 67,694 77,251 144,945 .
Intergovernmental Payable ) ' D 144,425 . 67,140 211,565
Tuterfund Payable ’ . - 800,000 © 800,000
Accrued Interest Payable o ) - 114,578 16,094 130,672
General Obligation Bonds Payable o : ) 535,228 278,308 813,536
Revenue Bonds Payable : : 880,000 - 380,000
OWDA Loans Payable = = : R 726,557 342,859 1,069,416
Capital Leases Payable : _ R .. 1,860 54,337 56,197
Total Current Liabilities ) o ) 2,556,577 1,809,623 ‘4,366,200
Noncurrent Liabilitics: : : .
Compensated Absences Payable ' I S 158,894 208,673 367,567
General Obligation Bonds Payable ' L . 1,777,087 © 3,944,598 . 5,721,685
Revenue Bonds Payable s o 8,460,000 - - " 8,460,000
OWDA Loans Payable o SRR 7,017,445 235,812,660 32,830,105
Capital Leases Payable - : AR - 2,169 2,168 4,337
Total Noncurrent Linbilities B 17,415,595 29,968,099 47,383,694 .
Total Liabilities R L L 19,972,172 ° 31,777,722 31,749,894
NET ASSELS . Lo . A
Investéd in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt : 16,198,211 - 12,558,190 28,756,401
Restricted for; o . s ' o i L .
Debt Service _ e S o 1,305,583 - 1,205,583
Unrestricted - - : I 11,722,737 2,659,956 . 14,382,693

Total Net Assets = S T8 29226531

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

City of Avon Lake, Ohio

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

OPFRATING REVENUES
Charges for Scrvices -
Miscellancous :
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSFS
Salaries - -
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Depreciation - :
Total Operating Expense
Operating Incone (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (FXI‘ENSI*B)

Interest
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Intergovemmental

Total Nonoperating Revenuces (Expenses)

Capital Grants
Transfers In
(Transfers Out)
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beg.Inning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

_Business-Type Activities - Interprise Funds |

Total

: \Vﬂtei‘- Sewer PR .

9044712 § 3028479 - § 12,073,191
84,510 : 40471 - o . 124,981
9,129,222 3,068,950 12,198,172
L9706 - - 2,437,226 4,186,932 -
L34410 95,970 880,381
3,175,815 2,483,621 5,664,436
1,114,221 726,849 1,841,070
6,824,153 5,748,666 12,572,819
2,305,069 (2,679,716) (374,647
183,562 37195 220,757
(1,088,800) (366.,696)° £1,455,496)
569,607 - - 569,607
.. (335,631) . (329,501). ..(665,132)
. 2,959,058 2,959,058

- 500,209 900,209

. - {18,137 (18,137

. 1,969,438 831,913 2,801,351
27,257,093 - 14,386,233 41,643,326
29226531 - § 15218146  $ 44444677

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Business-Type Activities - Enterprlse F\m(h

S S : “MWater 0 Sewer s Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R cee : :
Cash Received fromCustonwrs and Users - $. 9019600 § .. 35555712 - § 12,575,271
Other Cash Receipls ’ . : 84,510 ’ o 40471 124,981
Cash Paymenls to Employces for Semces ’ T (1,712,602) (2,389,304) * {4,101,906)
Cash Payments for Goods and Services, o (4,063,051) {3,777.970) . C(7.841,021)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities .. 332855 (257123 757,325
CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES o : -
Intergovemnnental Revenue ] . S 225496 el 225496
Advances In . : ) o ) ) Coa ©o-- 0 300,000 - - 800,000
Advances Out - : 7 (800,000). . e . . (800,000)
Trans fers In - . L - : 900209 0 900,209
Trans fers Out . o e - . (18,137) i (18,137}
Net Cash Provided by (Used m) NOI’IC"lpll'a] ] ) . S ) . '

Financing Activities . - ) (574,504) 1,682,072 - - - 1,107,568
CASHTLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND '

RELATID FINANCING ACTIVITIES o _ e
Proceeds from Sale of GO. Bonds o : : T 19,702,222 .. 19,702,222
Principal Paid on G.O. Bonds o N - (250,963} ' C(197,854) . {(448,817)
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds ' (855,000) - (855,000)
Principal Paid on OWDA Loans : : - (679,345) (264,981) . . (944.326)
Principal Paid on Capital Leases Payab]e ' o (1,092) (51,186) ’ (52,278)
Interest Paynents o o (1,325,620} (430,660) (1,756,280)
Payments for Capital Acqulsmons (64,331} . (19,755050) . (19,819,331)
Special Assessments : . . o ) - 30,830 30,830
Capital Grant . : : ' - 2,959,058 2,959,058
Met Cash Provided by (Used m) Capital and Related : . . . )

Financing Activities . . ) (3,176,351) 1,992,379 (1,183,972)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVES TING ACTIVITLES o : : : o o
Tnterest on Investments ] 123,007 31,135 . 154,142
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities ) - 123,007 ; 31,135 154,142
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash e : . : )

and Cash Equivalents ' S : S (299292) 11,134,355 T 835063
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - Beginning of Year L 1,798,719 2,084,803 9,883,522
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year S8 7499427 § 3,219,158 -3 10,718,585
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) - '

TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USID) BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES " _ . . oo .
Operating Income (Loss) S . 3 2,305,069 - § 2679716)  $°  (374,647)
Adjustments: . ) ' . ' N PR

‘Depreciation ' R 1,114,221 T 726,849 1,341,070

(Increase)Decrease in Assets: c o ’ ’ . : : : Co

- Accounts Receivable : S (25,013) @742 (62,437)

Materials and Supplies Inventory ' . R {37,329 . 13,804 (23,525)

- Prepaid Itens - : o S T(15,053) (3,959) (19,012)

“Increase (Decrease) In Liabilities: : : Co : '

Accounts Payable : : o ' R . 18414 (634,045) (615,631)

‘Accrued Wages . ' R 10,005 10,851 20,856

Compensated Absences Payable = . - - (31,033 76,290 44,357

Intergovemmental Payable -+ L T 9.8 - - {43,881) (53,706)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities ) 5 3,328,556 $ 2,571,231y - 757,325

The notes to the ﬁnancial statements are an integralpart ofthis statement.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Ralance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2011

ASSETS

FEquity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equlvalents “$ 2,657,899

Cash and Cash Equlvalents
With Escrow Agents
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Accrued Interest Receivable
Accounts Receivable - -
Interfund Receivable
htergoiremmehtal Receivable -
Prepaid Items : o
Income Taxes Rec_eivable' :
Property Taxes Receivable
SpeclalAssessments Recewable

Total Ass ets

LIAB]LlTIES AND IUND BALANCES

Liabilifies:

Accounts Payable -
Accrued Wages and Benef'ts :
lntergovemmentalPayable
Retainage Payable -

Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue -
Compensated Absences

Total Liabilities

ElndBal _ﬂnées :

Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Unass_igned (Deficit)
‘Total Fund Balance o
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance -

o - . Other Total
. General " Capital - Gowernmental = Governmental
Fund = Improvements . Funds | Funds
$ 858851 $ 6975 596 $ 10,492,346
- 10,936 - 46715 57651
68,782 R . 85,785 154,567
- 58,469 3,563 62,032
145,575 S 7,136 152,711
133,126 - 234,336 367,462
722,889 s 658,827 1,381,716
33,299 - 4388 37,687
12316,394 - 617,705 - 2,934,099
3,702,103 - 1,710,841 5,412,944
. - : - 2,552,616 12,552,616
$ 9,780,067  § 1545961  $ 12,279,803 $ 23,605,831
$ 167631 § 11,898 - - - 23,516 - % - 203,045
327,789 I 63,534 S 391,323
431,444 - 139,686 571,130
- 5,839 - 5,839
- 44,000 323,462 367,462
5,485,482 335,229 4,738,120 10,558,831
12,729 L. - 12,729
6,425,075 396,966 5,288,318 12,110,359
132,914 : 90,173 223,087
. e 2,463,198 2,463,198
390,996 1,148,995 . 4,594,806 '6,134,797
2,145,213 - 145,515 2,290,728
685,869 - (302,207 383,662
3,354,992 1,148,595 6,991,485 11,495472
$9780,067 $ 1545961  § 12279803 $§ 23,605,831

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

: . Other " Total

General " Capital  ~ Governmental - Governmental
Fund Improvements Funds - - Funds
Property and OtherTaxes : : $ 3 867712 - $ - % 1,624,510 § 5492222
Income Taxes® - . _ 6,875,408 1,830,658 698,413 9,404,479
Intergovernmental =~ = o ' 1,883,889 oo 2,020,650 3,904,539
Interest . - _ R ) - 240,443 19,352~ 259,795
Licenses and Permits o o 217945 0 - - 30,911 - - - - - 248,856
Fines and Forfeitures o : 273,248 - - - 75,965 - ¢ 349,213
Charges for Services T 908736 . . . . - B 908,736
Special Assessments L o - - 410,275 . . 410,275
All Other Revenues : L 126,338 . . 7 . 13220 139,565
Total Re\rel_lugs _ . P 14,153,276 . . 2,071,108 4,893,296 . 21,117,680
Sécurity of Persons and Property - : 6,301,426 - - - 163,046 ~1,845,306 - 8,309,778
Public Health and Welfare = - 118,787 34623 - o = e 153410
Leisure Tinme Activities - ‘874,699 44448 - - - 350 . 919,497
Community Environment _ Co394328 0 s 2,156 396,484
Basic Utility Services o ' 667,103 e 667,103
Transportation _ 2,765,269 1,826,169 - 1,440,116 6,031,554
General Governiment _ 2,491,839 _ -207,366 21,173 - 2,720,378
Capital Outlay ' - : 17,737 - 1,777,858 1,795,595

Debt Service: . . . . SRR . e o .
_ Principal Retirement - -~ - 10,476 19,749 1,032,617 - 1,062,842
Interest and Fiscal Charges - ' 3,916 ' 1,052 476,982 . - 481,950
Total Expenditures ' 13,627,843 . 2,314,190 6,596,558 22,538,591
Excess of Revenues (Under)Eq)endltures 525433 ©(243,082) {1,703,262) (1,420,911)

OTHERFlNAl\CINGSOURCES (USES) S - . S
Sale of Capital Assets _ _ 37,061 . : T : 37,061
Bond Anticipation Notes Issued o - ' 146,000 925,000 1,071,000
Premium on Notes Issued - ' - : - ' 2,900 2,900
Transfers In°- o i i - 968,000 1,323,517 - 2,291,517
Transters Out : ' . (1,439,659) . . (784.040) . {63,677) . {2,287,380)
Total Qther Financing Sou.rces (Uses) (1,402,598} . .. 329,956 2,187,740 1,115,098
Net Change in Fund Balances (877,165) . ~ 86,874 484,478 © (305,813
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, Restated = - 4,232,157 - 1,062,121 - 6,507,007 11,801,285
Fund Balances - Fnd of Year _ 3 3,354,992 $ 1,148,995 $ 6,991,485 $ 11,495472

The notes to the financial statements are an inlegral part ofthis statement.

20




City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2011

- Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Totul. e

T Water. Sewer
ASSETS o
Current Assets: b : . : : ST
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equwalents . $ 6,546,759 % 2,768,051 - §: -9314,810.
Materials and Supplles Inventory - : : 74,377 e 12,113 86,490
Accrued Interest Recewable . 24409 6,944 31,353
Accounts Receivable 726,804 - 749,357 1,476,161
Intergovernmental Receivable 1,804,754 R . 1,804,754
Prepaid ltems 16,776 o 6,877 23,653
Incoime Taxes Recewable ) - - 154,426. 154,426
Special Assessmenls Receivable - 180,221 180,221
Total Cukreiit Assets’ 9193879 - -~ ‘3,877,989 - 13,071,868
Noncurrent As'sets i
Restricted Assets: . S R : S
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equwa]enls 1,304,400 . - 1,304,490
Deferred Charges 404 992 ' 2739 412,731
Jnvesiment in"Joint: Vcnlurc
Capilal Asscts: o ] . .
Land 671,708 : 993,677 1,665,385
Construction in Progress 926,127 . .. 25,602,991 26,529,118
Depreciable Capital Assels, NetofDeprecmtlon 34,442,936 23,385,446 57,828,382
Total Noncurrent Assets 40,113,128 49,989,853 90,102,981
Total Assets 49,307,007 53,867,842 103,174,849
LIABILITIES .
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 163,968 _ 62 188 226,156
Accrued Wages and Benefits - 63,746 -39,527 103,273
Compensated Absences Payable 73,035 .68, 595 141,630
Contracts Payable 177,181 177,181
Intergoverhmehlal Payable 1,082,763 75, 818 1,158,581
Accrued Interest Payable ' 106,679 12 950 . 119,629
General Obligalion Bonds Payable - 711,200 145,000 . 856,200
Revenue Bonds Payable 915,000 e 915,000
OWDA Loans Payable © 777,195 209,617 086,812
Capilal Leases Payable - 1,774 1,774 3,548
ETL1 Loan Payable - 142,124 - 142,124
Total Current Liabilities : 4,214,665 615,469 4,830,134
Noncurrent Liabilities: : Lo
Compensated Absences Payable 171,182 166,710 337,892
General Obligation Bonds Payable 1,072,005 3,799,598 4,871,603
Revenue Bonds Payable 7,545,000 o - 7,545,000
OWDA Loans Payable -6,240,250 31,245,367 37,485,617
Capital Leases Payable 582 . © 581 1,163
ETL1 Loan Payable 105,514 - - 105,514
Total Noncurrent Liabilities - 15,134,533 35,212,256 50,346,789
Total Liabilities 19,349,198 - 35,827,725 55,176,923
NET ASSETS : :
Invested in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt 18,530,127 14,580,177 - 33,110,304
Restricted for: : . h
Debt Service 1,304,490 - 1,304,490
Unrestricted ) ~ 10,123,192 3,459,940 13,583,132
Total Net Assets - - : 3 29,957,809 $ 18,040,117 § 47,997,926

The notes to the financial statements are an intcgral part of this statement.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

OPERATINGRB’E\IUES .
Charges for Services

Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revennes

OPERATING EXPINSES
Salarics )

Purchased Services
Malerials and Supplies
Depreciation

Other :
Total Operating Expense
Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPIERATING REVENUIS (EXPFNSFS)

Interest: -~ .
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Intergovernmental

Income Taxes R

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Grants and Contributions
Transfers In i :
(Transfers Out)

Change in Net Assets

Net Assels - Beginning of Year, Restated.
Net Assets - End of Year

Business-Type Activities - Eh'terin'.is.e. Funds

" Water | Sewer “Total
$. 9,766,739 © 5223139 S 14,989,878
101,777 : 2 - 101,779
9,868,516 5,223,141 15,091,657 .

2,146,692 2,077,742 4,224.434

3,435,870 1,510,561 4,946,431

- 2,016,244 249,800 . 2,266,044

1,119,010 816,220 © 1,935,230

C 4528 3,564 - 8,092

8722344 - 4,657,887 13,380,231
1,146,172 565,254 1,711,426
97,675 29,632 127,307
{1,070,502) {490,744) 7 (1,561,246)

473,053 39954 - 513,007

- 258,615 . .. 258,615
(499,774) (162,543) (662,317)

75,640 2,111,326 - 2,187,466
9,240 11,683 L 20923
- (25,060) (25,060)

731,278 2,501,160 3,232,438

129,226,531 15,538,957 44,765,438

- § . 29957809 18,040,117 - § - 47,997,926

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Avon Lake, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Customers and Users
Olher Cash Rece:pts )

Cash Paymenls to Employees for Serwces :

Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Other Cash Payments

Net Cash Provided by Dperalmg Acimhes

CASH FLOWS FROM N OE\CAPITAL
. FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental Revenue

Income Taxes

Advances In

Advances Out

Transkers In

Transfers Cul

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapual

- Financing Activilies

CASHTLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACI‘IVITIES

Proceeds from OWDA Loans

Proceeds from ETL1 Loan

Principal Paid on G.0O. Bonds

Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds

Principal Paid on OWDA Loans

Principal Paid on ETL] Loan

Principal Paid on Capilal Leases Payable .

Interest Payments

Payments for Capilal Acqulsnmns

Special Assessments

Intergovernmental Revenue

Capital Grant

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Flnancmg Activities

. Busmess-TypeActivilies EntorpnseFunds

CASH FL OWS FROM I\TVESTNG ACTIVITI.ES

Tnterest on Investments
Net Cash Provided by lnveslmg Aclivities -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash. Equivalenls - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Assels:
Accounts Receivable
Malerials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Tiems B )
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities: -
Accounts Payable :
Conlracts Payabte
Accrued Wages - . .
Compensated Absences Payable BREERE
" Intergovernmental Payable L
Net Cash Provided by Operaling Activities

Water - Sewer “Total
$ 9718926 - S 501,660 § 14,730,586
: 101,777 L2 101,779
(2,097,653) (2,143,385) - (4,241,038)
(5,152,068) - (1,814,159} . (6,966,227
(4,528) . (3,564} (8,092)
3,3566454 - 1,050,554 3,617,008
380,774 - 380,774
o 425,000 425,000
860,000 o £00,000
S (800,000) - - (800,000)
"'9,240 11,683 20,923
fo . (25,060) - (25,060)
1,190,014 (388,377) . 801,637
..... . 5,592,829 5,592,829
© 585,327 585,327
(535,228) - (218 308)' : (813,536)
(880,000) - (880,000)
(726,557) (293 364) (1,019,921)
" (337,689) (337,689)
(1,673) (54,150) {55,823)
_(1,046,451) (492,599) - (1,539,050
- (1,459,583) (7,734,330) (9,193,913)
. 36,994 36,994
900,000 39,954 939,954
. 2,040,942 2,040,942
(3,501,854) (1,142,032 (4,643,886)
. 97,208 28,748 - 125,956
97,208 28,748 125,956
351,822 (451,107) (99,285)
7,499,427 3,219,158 .. .. 10,718,585
$ 7851249 % 2763051 & 10,619,300
S L6 . S 565254 - 5 1711426
1,119,010 816,220 - 1,935,230
@7813) @11,479) - - (259,292)
2,182 (2,663) .. . (481)
(1,723) (2.918) - (4,641)
96,129 (54,913) 11,216
177,181 - 177,181
19,349 {17,006) 2,343
17629 (50,619) © (32.990)
- . 38,338 8678, 47,016
5 2566454 . § 1,050,554 5 3,617,008

The rioles to the Fnancial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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BY: Mrs. Fenderbosch TEMP NO: 10110

ORDINANCE NO. 12-2013

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TC SIGN A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF
AVON LAKE AND THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD LAKE FOR
PARTICIPATION IN A PROPANE GAS CONVERSION
PROGRAM, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, propane auto gas is an alternative clean fuel
identified by the Clean Air Act of 1990 and the National
Energy Policy of 1992 and 2005, and

WHEREAS, the City of Avon Lake and the City of
Sheffield Lake wish to convert certain City owned vehicles
to propane auto gas as an alternative clean fuel in an
effort to save on fuel costs and to extend the life of city
owned wvehicles, and

WHEREAS, the City of Avon Lake and the City of
Sheffield Lake wish to share a propane fueling station and
convert certain vehicles owned by the City of Avon Lake and
the City of Sheffield Lake from gasoline to a bi-fuel of
gas and propane, and .

~ WHEREAS, the City of Avon Lake has indicated it is
willing to install a propane fueling station within its
borders and make propane available to the converted
vehicles owned by the City of Sheffield Lake, now
therefore;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AVON LAKE,
STATE OF OHIO:

Section No. 1: That the Mayor of the City of Avon Lake
is hereby authorized to sign the Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Avon Lake and the City of
Sheffield Lake for participation in a propane gas
conversion program, a copy of which is attached hereto.

Section No. 2: That it is found and determined that
all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating
to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this
Council and any of its committees which resulted in such




formal actions, were in meetings open to the public, in
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section No: 3: That this ordinance is hereby declared
to be an emergency measure, the emergency being the
necessity of having a Memorandum of Understanding in place
to meet the March 1, 2013 loan application deadline and
further to move ahead with the project to convert City
owned vehicles to alternative clean fuel to improve the
environment and to save fuel costs, thus for the health,
safety, and welfare of the residents of Avon Lake.
Therefore, this ordinance shall be in full force and effect
from and immediately after its passage and approval by the
Mayor.

PASSED: _ 2/11/13

Presid&nt Of Council

POSTED: 2/15/13 2/12/13
Approved

ATTEST: /%%é&g@4é;:}f;%£z€&b
Clerk of Counc%’ % [:dayord 0 ¢ ¢

LDmMmDmgChﬁdemﬂdmerMAmnumdo
hereby certify that the forez%ing is 8 G?e and accurate copy of

Ordin_gncelResolution No.._i?as‘?/ on the.ﬂﬁ’ay of ﬂrm»/

ZO.EBy said Coungil,
;"
(m%keaéézéé Q%§§ﬂ -
Clerk of Council




MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN
THE CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO
AND
THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD LAKE, OHIO
FOR
PARTICIPATION IN A PROPANE GAS CONVERSION
PROGRAM

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("MOU") is made as of

» 2013, by and between the CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO, a political

subdivision of the State of Ohio ("Avon Lake") as duly authorized by Ordinance No.
passed by the Council of Avon Lake, and the CITY OF SHEFFIELD LAKE, OHIO, a
political subdivision of the State of Ohio ("Sheffield Lake") as duly authorized by Ordinance
No. passed by the Council of Sheffield Lake. (Avon Lake and Sheffield Lake are
hereinafter sometimes jointly referred to as the "Parties" and individually as a “Party.”)
RECITALS

A. The Ohio Department of Development has created the Local Government
Innovation Fund (“LGIF”) to offer communities financial assistance in the form of loans (the
“Loan Program™) to create more cfficient and effective service delivery within their areas.
Projects are designed to facilitate improved business environments and promote community
attraction with their plans for efficiency, collaboration and shared services, It is anticipated that
partnering communities will save money and provide more efficient services to their constituents
with assistance from this program. Award amounts for applicants with collaborative partners are
limited to $100,000 per applicant and $100,000 for each collaborative partner, up to $500,000.

Each borrower must provide a local match investment equal to at least 10 percent of the project’s




total eligible costs or the percentage indicated in the loan agreement, whichever is greater. The
local match includes financial or in-kind contributions made by the borrower directly and/or by
third party project partners with which the borrower has entered into a binding agreement for
purposes of completing the project. Eligible in-kind local match investments are contributions of
services and assets that are necessary to implement the project. The local match requirement is
satisfied by eligible financial or in-kind contributions made during the two-year period prior to
the date the State Controlling Board approves an award to the eligible project.

B. The Parties desire to share a propane fueling station and to convert vehicles
owned by the Parties from gasoline to a bi-fuel of gasoline and propane. To assist them in
accomplishing that objective the Parties also desire to participate in the Loan Program.

C. Avon Lake has indicated that it is willing to install a propane fueling station
within its borders and to make propane available to the converted vehicles owned by Sheffield
Lake.

D. The Parties desire that Avon Lake take the lead in advertising for bids for such
conversion and in applying for loans pursuant to the Loan Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, conditions
and terms of this MOU to be kept and performed, the Parties agree as follows.

SECTION 1: RECITALS.

The above Recitals are hereby agreed to by the Parties as accurate, and are incorporated

herein as though fully rewritten.

SECTION 2: LOAN APPLICATION.

The Parties hereby authorize Avon Lake to complete and submit applications for

individual loans to the Parties pursuant to the Loan Program. The Parties understand that any




loans awarded will be to the separate Parties, and that no Party will be obligated on the loan
made to the other Party. |

SECTION 3: CONVERSION OF VEHICLES.

The Parties hereto shall submit the following number of their vehicles for conversion

from gasoline to propane in accordance with the following time schedule:

Party No. of Vehicles Time
Avon Lake 5 2013
Avon Lake 3 2014
Sheffield Lake 0 2013
Sheffield Lake 3 2014

Avon Lake shall prepare the bid specifications for such conversion and shall advertise for such
bids. The cost and expense of preparing the bid specifications and advertising for bids shall be
paid equally by the Parties. Each Party shall enter into a separafe contract with the successful
bidder for the conversion of its vehicles.

SECTION 4: FUELING STATION,

Not later than December 31, 2013, Avon Lake shall install within its borders, at a location
selected by Avon Lake (the “Station™), the equipment necessary to dispense propane for the
converted vehicles. Avon Lake shall permit Sheffield Lake to purchase propane at the Station,
The cost charged by Avon Lake shall be equal to Avon Lake’s cost for such propane plus a

reasonable amount to cover the cost of operating the Station.




SECTION 5: MISCELLANEQUS.

51  Assignment. Except as herein specifically set forth, neither Party shall assign,
delegate or transfer its rights or obligations under or its interest in this MOU without the written
consent of the other Party.

52  Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in
writing, and shall be deemed duly delivered, received and given: (i) upon personal delivery to
the address set forth below, or to such other address designated by prior written notice to the
other Party; or (ii) one (1) business day following delivery to an overnight courier guaranteeing
next business day delivery to the address set forth below, or to such other address designated by
prior written notice to the other Party; or (iii) immediately upon the next business day after
confirmation of facsimile receipt at the fax number set forth below or to such other fax number

designated by written notice to the other Party. The address of the Parties for the purpose hereof

shall respectively be:
For Avon Lake: City of Avon Lake
150 Avon Belden Road
Avon Lake, Ohio 44012
Attention: Mayor
. Fax No. (440) 930-4107
For Sheffield Lake: City of Sheffield Lake

609 Harris Road
Sheffield Lake, Ohio 44054

Attention: Mayor
Fax No. (440) 949-5169

53  Entire MOU; Amendments. This MOU constitutes the entire agreement between

the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any previous agreements or

understandings. This MOU may be amended only by a written instrument signed by both Parties.




54  No Waiver. No term or condition of this MOU may be waived except by an
instrument duly executed by the waiving Party. No delay or failure by a Party in exercising any
of its rights, remedies, powers or privileges under this MOU and no custom, practice or course of
dealing between the Parties or any other person shall be deemed a waiver by such Party of any
such rights, remedies, powers or privileges, even if such delay or failure is continuous or
repeated. No single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege shall preclude
any other or further exercise thereof by any such Party or the exercise of any other right, remedy,
power or privilege by such Party, including, without limitation, the right of such Party
subsequently to demand strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this MOU.

5.5  Governing Law. The validity, effect, construction, performance and enforcement

of this MOU and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall be governed in all
respects by the laws of the State of Ohio without reference to conflicts of law. Venue for the
resolution of any disputes between the Parties regardi.ng this MOU shall be within the courts of
the State of Ohio.

5.6.  Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in one or more counterparts. All
counterparts so executed shall constitute one agreement, binding on all parties, even though all
Parties are not signatory to the same counterpart. This MOU, and any document executed in
connection with this MOU, shall be deemed executed and delivered upon each Party's delivery of
executed signature pages thereof by facsimile or by attachment to an e-mail message with the
same effect as delivery of the originals.

3.7 Severability. If all or any portion of any provision of this MOU as applied to a
Party or to any circumstance shall be ruled by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void or

unenforceable for any reason, the same shall in no way affect (to the maximum extent




permissible by law) that provision or the remaining portions of that provision as applied to a
Party or circumstance or any other provision of this MOU or the validity or enforceability of this
MOU as a whole, all of which shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law.

EXECUTED by the Parties as of the date first above written,

CITY OF AVON LAKE, OHIO
By:

Gregory Zilka, Mayor

CITY OF SHEFFIELD LAKE, OHIO
By:

Dennis Bring, Mayor

Approved as to form:

Abraham Lieberman, Law Director, Avon Lake

David M. Graves, Law Director, Sheffield Lake

February 11, 2013
UAALieberman\Propane Gas Conversion ProgramiMemeorandum of Understandings.doc
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	Request Amount: 46800
	JobsOhio Region: [Northeast]
	Number of Collaborative Partners including lead agency: 2
	Project Approach: [Efficiency]
	Project Type: [Fleet Management]
	Lead Agency: City of Avon Lake
	Project Name: Propane Conversion of Vehicles
	Type of Request: [Loan]
	Street Address: 150 Avon Belden Road
	City: Avon Lake
	Lead Agency Zip: 44012
	In what county is the lead agency located: Lorain
	Ohio House District: 57
	Ohio Senate District: 13
	Project Contact: Joseph Reitz
	PC Title: Engineering Manager
	PC Address: 150 Avon Belden Road
	PC City: Avon Lake
	PC Zip: 44012
	PC Email Address: jrreitz@avonlake.org
	PC Phone Number: 440-930-4101
	Fiscal Agency: City of Avon Lake
	Fiscal Officer: Nancy Bryan
	FO Title: Finance Director
	Fiscal Agency Address: 150 Avon Belden Road
	Fiscal Agency City: Avon Lake
	Fiscal Agency Zip: 44012
	City Residents Check Box: 1
	Less than 20,000 residents: 
	County Residents Check Box: 1
	Less than 235,000 residents: 
	Single Applicant Check Box: 1
	Collaborative Partners Check Box: 1
	As agreed upon in the signed partnership agreement please identify the nature of the partnership with an explanation of how the lead agency and collaborative partners will work toegether on the proposed projectRow1: 

 



	Collaborative Partner 1: 
	CP 1 Address: 
	CP 1 City: 
	CP1 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 2: 
	CP 2 Address: 
	CP 2 City: 
	CP2 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 3: 
	CP 3 Address: 
	CP 3 City: 
	CP 3 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 4: 
	CP 4 Address: 
	CP 4 City: 
	CP 4 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 5: 
	CP 5 Address: 
	CP 5 City: 
	CP 5 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 6: 
	CP 6 Address: 
	CP 6 City: 
	CP 6 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 7: 
	CP 7 Address: 
	CP 7 City: 
	CP 7 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 8: 
	CP 8 Address: 
	CP 8 City: 
	CP 8 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 9: 
	CP 9 Address: 
	CP 9 City: 
	CP 9 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 10: 
	CP 10 Address: 
	CP 10 City: 
	CP 10 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 11: 
	CP 11 Address: 
	CP 11 City: 
	CP 11 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 12: 
	CP 12 Address: 
	CP 12 City: 
	CP 12 Zip: 
	Collaborative Partner 13: 
	CP 13 Address: 
	CP 13 City: 
	CP 13 Zip: 
	Provide a general description of the project including a description of the final work product derived from the grant study or loan implementation project This information may be used for council briefings program and marketing materialsRow1: The purpose of this project is to reduce transportation fuel cost for the City of Avon Lake by converting vehicles to run on propane in addition to gasoline.  It is designed so neighboring communities can opt in at a later date.  The business model is designed to be financially self sustainable following repayment of the initial zero interest loan , which will jump start the program.  The forecast savings from substitution of propane for gasoline is so great that the loan will be paid back within the first three years of the required loan payment schedule. 
There is a need to reduce expenditures within the City's budget.  Not only will switching to propane accomplish this, but it will extend the usable life of the vehicles, thus, saving money while reducing emissions.  The Government Innovation Fund loan is seed money to allow 5 vehicles to be converted the first year and 3 more to be converted in the 2nd year for less out of pocket to the City than it would otherwise cost without the loan to convert a single vehicle.  Every year there after two vehicles will be converted from savings accrued through the use of propane.  By year three, there will be ten vehicles in the fleet. This number will be maintained as decommissioned vehicles are offset by addition of new vehicles.
The vehicles will be modified to use either unleaded gasoline or propane with a flip of a switch. These conversions are intended to lower fuel costs for the on-the-road vehicles that are driven daily for approximately 25,000 miles per year.  The fuel cost savings averages approximately $19,000 a year over twelve years for a total savings of $230,800.00. The average cost of propane is $1.00 - $1.50 less than gasoline.  Propane presently costs approximately $2.00 per gallon including taxes. By converting to propane, the City will lower its annual fuel costs and extend the useful life of the vehicles since propane is a cleaner fuel.  Experience by others shows it will also reduce maintenance costs due to cleaner burning nature as compared to gasoline fueled vehicles.  There is also a reduction in air emissions.  Importantly, the conversion kits are reusable on future vehicles reducing installed cost to $1,800 as compared to $6,500 for an original kit, significantly enhancing the long term life of the project.
The conversions shall be specified for City police vehicles and for Avon Lake Municipal Utilities' trucks.  The City of Avon Lake shall prepare the bid specifications for the vehicle conversions and installation of the propane fueling station at the Avon Lake Service Department, which already has unleaded and diesel dispensing facilities.  The specifications shall require the use of an experienced installer to use EPA certified bi-fuel conversion kits and shall include a five year maintenance warranty on each installation, including kits. Once the kits are installed, the vehicles will be capable of running on either propane or gasoline fuels.  The cost savings shall be measurable based on the mileage and gallons of fuel used over a given year and the reduced maintenance costs.
The propane fueling station shall be a deliverable of this project by the fuel provider.  The specifications shall require that the winning contractor provide above ground tank(s), fueling dispenser, operational/billing/fleet management software to operate the system, adequate in size for the number of vehicles using the facility, and conversion kits and installation. The City of Avon Lake shall host the location for the tank, provide electrical power to the tank vicinity and crash protection.  The chosen site has nighttime access and lighting; therefore, no additional lighting is anticipated.
We anticipate the propane conversion program will grow and include neighboring municipalities who elect to opt in.
It may become advantageous to use a fueling station located at National Fleets of Ohio located on the western edge of the City.  This location is closer to Avon Lake Municipal Utilities to fuel their vehicles.  It would also facilitate future collaboration opportunities between the City of Avon Lake and the cities of Sheffield Lake to the west and Avon to the south.  The propane fueling center to be installed at the Service Department located in the central south section of the City, lends itself to use by the Avon Lake Police Department and in the future by the city of Bay Village and Avon when they are able to opt in.

	Previous Submission: No
	If yes in which Rounds: 
	What was the project name: 
	What entity was the lead applicant: 
	Provide a summary of past efforts to implement a project to improve efficiency implement shared services coproduction or a merger 5 pointsRow1: Past examples of successful efficiency projects the City of Avon Lake has undertaken include installing building efficiency controls through the installation of new windows, installing motion detector devices to turn lights on and off, installing high efficiency lighting and more efficient HVAC systems. Over 16 different building systems were installed at the new aquatic center to be efficient including the installation of light wells to allow natural light into the men's and lady's wash rooms without turning on room lights, the installation of automatic water facets, choice of color and materials to reflect the heat off the structure to keep it cooler during the summer, on line registration, concession stand software to assist with inventory control, etc. Another example is the Fire Department's use of Lorain County's 911 service in place of the Fire Department Dispatch.  Property owners were already paying for the 911 service prior to adopting the County program. Now with the use of 911 one Firefighter per shift can be added to the Fire response team and Paramedics without hiring an additional employee. Examples of successful collaboration among our neighboring communities and the City of Avon Lake include the Fire District where Police and Fire Departments have provided backup emergency services through mutual aid.  This effort has been a long standing benefit for many years past and will continue in the future.  Bay Village, Avon and Sheffield Lake have joined Avon Lake in this endeavor. Neighboring community Service Departments have also been cooperative in sharing equipment.  
	Past Success Check Box: 5
	Provide a summary of how the applicants proposal can be scaled for the inclusion of other entities 5 pointsRow1: 
The business model can duplicated in other communities.  The Avon Lake central fueling center is in a strategic location for this project and for other adjoining communities who at a later date may opt in.  They have shown an interest over the last two years. The proposed location on SR 83, Avon Belden Road, is within one mile of the Avon Service Department and less than three miles from the Bay Village Service Department and Sheffield Lake. Billing for the propane shall be easy to expand and increase.  The specifications shall require the operator to install the necessary software to invoice individual communities based on the vehicle.  The location of the proposed Avon Lake propane station has adequate room for expansion as other communities and  school buses opt in. The contract for vehicle conversions shall also be scaled when others opt in..  The specifications shall be written with unit price conversions per vehicle. When other communities opt in, partners will sign a MOU.  
	Scalable Check Box: 5
	Provide a summary of how the applicants proposal can be replicated by other entities A replicable project should include a component that another entity could use as a tool to implement a similar project 5 pointsRow1: The program and implementation shall be set up in a way that would be easy to replicate.  The specifications for the vehicle conversions shall include necessary warranty terms and conditions and the fueling location and operational setup shall be specified to simplify the operation and billing for others to replicate.  Placing the ownership, billing of fuel used and operational oversight on the propane provider shall save Avon Lake future expansion costs and simplify operations on the City's end.  

Duplicating this program in other communities shall be as simple as choosing a site, creating MOU's between partners and bidding the project by simply changing names on the specification book.  From a replication or expansion factor this project shall be created for others to follow.  

The attached spreadsheet is a very useful took listing the number of vehicles converted, number of vehicles to decommission, miles traveled per year, cost of routine maintenance, cost of propane, cost of loan and payment plan. This tool helps us understand the savings experienced by converting to propane AutoGas fuel.

	Replicable Check Box: 5
	Provide a summary of the likelihood of the grant study recommendations being implemented Applicants requesting an implementation loan should provide a summary of the probability of savings from the loan request 5 pointsRow1: Alternative fuel vehicles have long been a priority for the City of Avon Lake. The City hosted two regional propane vehicle conversion events that attracted over 100 stakeholders. Avon Lake City Council passed two ordinances on February 11, 2013. The first authorized the Mayor to enter into a MOU with the City of Sheffield Lake. Due to not knowing if a levy would pass at the Primary Election, Sheffield Lake was unable to sign the MOU. The second authorized the Mayor to sign the loan Application and implement the project if awarded the loan. The City of Avon Lake has a Sustainability Chapter in its Master Plan. The City has implemented building efficiency measures and has requested a performance audit with the Auditor of the State of Ohio.  At this writing the City has not received the final audit findings. Propane conversion is one in a number of steps to do more with less. Not only will there be a financial savings in fuel and maintenance costs but there is a certain accomplishment in implementing a project that is environmentally friendly and reduces the amount of fossil fuels used to operate. The attached chart summarizes the savings of the propane conversion program from 2013 - 2024 even though the City plans on continuing the program beyond 2024. The LGIF loan provides for the conversion of 5 vehicles in 2013 to propane and 3 vehicles in 2014 for a total of 8 vehicles.  Every year after at least 2 vehicles will be converted. Beginning  2016 two vehicles will be retired keeping the fleet at 10 vehicles.  In actuality, there will be more conversions as other City departments participate. The cost to convert one vehicle without the loan is $6,500.  With the loan, 8 vehicles can be converted with a cash outlay of $9200. The total owed the State will be $46,800. The net savings per year is $11,558 for 2013, $16,240 for 2014 and $20,300 every year after. Thus, the loan can technically be paid off before the first loan payment is due in 2016.
	Probability of Success Check Box: 5
	If the project is the result of recommendations from a prior performance audit provided by the Auditor of State under Chapter 117 of the Ohio Revised Code or is informed by a previous cost benchmarking study please attach a copy with the supporting documents In the section below provide a summary of the performance audit findings or cost bench marking study results 5 pointsRow1: This project was not the result of a performance audit.  The project is simply an effort to improve efficiencies and reduce costs. 
A cost analysis was performed by a retired engineer who specialized in project cost analysis and future project forecasting for Union Carbide having made a career in the petro-chemical industry.  He is a resident of the City of Avon Lake and researched the probability of success for this project.  It was determined that based on average vehicle use of 25,000 miles per year and with propane costs ranging from $1.00 - $1.50 less per gallon than gasoline the project costs could be recovered in as early as 36 months.  With the influx of propane into the market through increased Ohio gas production the cost of propane is forecast to decrease. The decrease in cost was not incorporated into this scenario.  Attached are supporting documents detailing the future cost analysis.

	Performance Audit Check Box: 5
	Provide a summary of how the proposal will promote a business environment through a private sector parter 5 points andor provide for community attraction 3 pointsRow1: Businesses are attracted to communities that demonstrate fiscal responsibility and environmental stewardship.  The vehicle conversion program does both. The cost of propane is $1.00 - $1.50 less per gallon than gasoline.  The savings in fuel costs will fund the repayment of the loan beginning one year earlier than required and completing repayment in three years. This project shall provide jobs to businesses in the area and expand the City's vendor list.  Among qualified converters two are located in Lorain County.  National Fleets Services of Ohio is located in Avon Lake and converts Ford fleet products.  Xtreme Performance of North Ridgeville is less than 8 miles from Avon Lake, and they convert all fleet manufacturers.  The City's first conversions will be Ford. Future conversions may include Dodge or/and Chevrolet vehicles.  Both private businesses have expressed interest in bidding on the project. From the installation of the vehicle conversion kits to the maintenance and the fueling of these vehicles the public sector shall benefit.  All conversions and maintenance on the conversion kits and connecting hoses will be performed by the local converters. The conversion of these vehicles will provide a fuel market for municipalities that is currently not utilized on a fleet-wide scale.  The fuel can potentially be Ohio produced propane. This project shall also be used as a public outreach tool that illustrates how communities are striving for financial efficiency and environmental consciousness.  It is an excellent example of how changing fuel sources can reduce emissions into the environment, reduce fueling and maintenance costs while extending the usable life of a vehicle.  
	Economic Impact Check Box: 5
	Provide a summary of how the project responds to substantial changes in economic demand for local or regional government services The narrative should include a description of the current and future expected servce level needs 5 pointsRow1: The primary economic demand for this project is long term fuel savings.  The partners in this project see the propane bi-fuel as a way to save money, extend the useful life of the vehicles and equipment. The price of propane is dropping as a result of increased domestic Ohio produced propane in the market place.  It is an opportunity to demonstrate to the residents and the region that we are aggressively pursuing opportunities to improve our financial position as we continue to have a positive impact on the environment by reducing air emissions. It is the intent to grow this project in the future.  The location of the propane fueling station site was chosen not only for the its location but also for the ease of future expansion.  There are little to no limitations on the site.  The specifications and operations of the tanks shall be the responsibility of the vendor;  therefore, when propane demand increases, the vendor shall be obligated to increase the tank size and upgrade the software accordingly with no additional cost to the tax payers.  This means that if more propane is used, the City shall not required to expand the facility with public money.  If the vendor sells more propane, then the vendor shall be responsible to expand the ability to serve the needs.    
	Economic Demand Check Box: 5
	LGIF Request: 46800
	Source 1: City of Avon Lake
	Source 1 Amount: 5200
	Source 2: 
	Source 2 Amount: 
	Source 3: 
	Source 3 Amount: 
	Source 4: 
	Source 4 Amount: 
	Source 5: City of Avon Lake
	Source 5 Amount: 1000
	Source 6: City of Avon Lake
	Source 6 Amount: 1500
	Source 7: City of Avon Lake
	Source 7 Amount: 1500
	TotalMatch: 9200
	TotalSources: 56000
	Consultant Fees: 
	Source Consultant: 
	Legal Fees: 
	Source Legal: 
	Other: Vehicle Conv.
	Amount 1: 52000
	Source Other 1: 90% LGIF, 10% Avon Lake
	Other_2: Advertising
	Amount 2: 1000
	Source Other 2: City of Avon Lake
	Other_3: Spec Writing
	Amount 3: 1500
	Source Other 3: City of Avon Lake
	Other_4: Crash Protection
	Amount 4: 1500
	Source Other 4: City of Avon Lake
	Other_5: 
	Amount 5: 
	Source Other 5: 
	Other_6: 
	Amount 6: 
	Source Other 6: 
	Other_7: 
	Amount 7: 
	Source Other 7: 
	Other_8: 
	Amount 8: 
	Source Other 8: 
	TotalUses: 56000
	Match Percentage: 0.16428571428571428
	Local Match Check Box: 1
	Project Budget Narrative Use this space to justify any expenses that are not selfexplanatory: 
Budget items not explained in the project narrative include the following:
Advertisement $1000:  Avon Lake generally advertises for bids in The Morning Journal.  The notices shall also be mailed to known firms that can facilitate this project.
Specification Writing $1500:  Preparation of the advertisement for bids shall be done in-house with the Avon Lake Engineering Department.  Specifications shall be formatted to other similar projects but modified to meet the demands of this project.  
Crash Protection $1,500:  The location of the proposed propane fuel tanks shall necessitate crash protection for the above ground tanks.  The City shall consider the use of either concrete barriers and/or a combination of 8 inch diameter steel posts filled with concrete.  The existing facility utilizes the use of steel posts.
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	FY: 2013
	FY_2: 2014
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	FY1 Contract Services: 32500
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	FY3 Insurance: 
	FY1 Travel: 
	FY2 Travel: 
	FY3 Travel: 
	FY1 Capital: 
	FY2 Capital: 
	FY3 Capital: 
	FY1 Supplies: 
	FY2 Supplies: 
	FY3 Supplies: 
	FY1 Evaluation: 
	FY2 Evaluation: 
	FY3 Evaluation: 
	FY1 Marketing: 
	FY2 Marketing: 
	FY3 Marketing: 
	FY1 Conferences: 
	FY2 Conferences: 
	FY3 Conferences: 
	FY1 Administration: 
	FY2 Administration: 
	FY3 Administration: 
	PB Other 1: Advertisement
	FY1 Other 1: 1000
	FY2 Other 1: 
	FY3 Other 1: 
	PB Other 2: Crash Protection
	FY1 Other 2: 1500
	FY2 Other 2: 
	FY3 Other 2: 
	PB Other 3: 
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	Total Expenses FY1: 36500
	Total Expenses FY2: 19500
	Total Expenses FY3: 13000
	Local Government: Avon Lake
	FY1 Revenue 1: 3250
	FY2 Revenue 1: 1950
	FY1 Revenue 6: 
	FY1 Revenue 7: 11558
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	FY1 Revenue 10: 
	FY1 Revenue 11: 
	RevenuesRow1_2: 
	Local Government_2: Avon Lake
	FY1 Revenue 2: 4000
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	Local Government_3: 
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	RevenuesRow3: 
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	FY1 Revenue 4: 29250
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	RevenuesState Government FederalGovernment_4: 
	RevenuesRow6: 
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	Other_12: Savings from Propane
	RevenuesRow7: 16240
	RevenuesRow7_2: 20300
	Other_13: 
	RevenuesRow8: 
	RevenuesRow8_2: 
	RevenuesRow9: 
	RevenuesRow9_2: 
	RevenuesRow10: 
	RevenuesRow10_2: 
	RevenuesRow11: 
	RevenuesRow11_2: 
	FY1 Total Revenues: 48058
	RevenueFY2: 35740
	RevenueFY3: 20300
	Check Box1: nO
	FY_4: 2016
	FY_5: 2017
	FY_6: 2018
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_46: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_47: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_48: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_49: 3600
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_50: 3600
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_51: 3600
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_52: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_53: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_54: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_55: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_56: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_57: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_58: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_59: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_60: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_61: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_62: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_63: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_64: 
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	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_67: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_68: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_69: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_70: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_71: 
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	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_76: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_77: 
	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_78: 
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	Total Program ExpensesSalary and Benefits Contract Services Occupancy rent utilities maintenance Training  Professional Development Insurance Travel Capital  Equipment Expenses Supplies Printing Copying  Postage Evaluation Marketing Conferences meetings etc Administration Other  Other  Other_81: 
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	RevenuesRow3_3: 
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	RevenuesRow4: 
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	Other_17: Savings from Propane
	RevenuesRow8_3: 20300
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	Other_18: 
	RevenuesRow9_3: 
	RevenuesRow9_4: 
	RevenuesRow10_3: 
	RevenuesRow10_4: 
	RevenuesRow11_3: 
	RevenuesRow11_4: 
	RevenuesRow12: 
	RevenuesRow12_2: 
	Program Budget Narrative: The intent of this project is to convert five (5) vehicles in 2013 , three (3) more vehicles in 2014 and an additional two in 2015 for a total of ten (10) vehicles at program end.  The vehicle breakdown is as follows:
2013 - Avon Lake Police Department  three (3) Ford 2011 Crown Victorias; Avon Lake Municipal Utilities 2013 Ford F250 truck and F350 truck.
2014 & 2105, Avon Lake Police Department shall purchase new vehicles.  These vehicles shall be either Dodge Chargers, Chevy Tahoes, Chevy Caprices or other similar vehicles.

It is assumed that the vehicles will accrue the minimum annual miles historically at 25,000 mi/yr Avon Lake and that propane tanks will be refilled as needed.

The timeline for the budget is accurate to the date of this application.  We are assuming that the State of Ohio Bid for Police Vehicles will remain as listed above for model and make. The only assumptions are as to the vehicles available for 2014 & 2015.  Since Ford dropped the Crown Victoria from the product line, many communities such as Avon Lake need to explore other, comparable vehicles on the State of Ohio Bid List.

See page 18 for detailed discussion of economic analysis for ten years.
  
	Program Budget Check Box: 5
	Radio Button12: Yes
	Gains: 230798
	ROI: 2.2761143984220906
	Costs: 101400
	Expected Return on Investment is: 
	ROI Check Box: 30
	Return on Investment Justification Narrative In the space below describe the nature of the expected return on investment providing justification for the numbers presented in the ROI calculation This calculation should be based on the savings cost avoidance or increased revenues shown in the program budgets on the preceeding pages  Use references when appropriate to justify assumptions used for cost projectionsRow1: This project will generate a return to the City through a fuel cost avoidance, as propane is cheaper than gasoline and provides nearly the same average mileage.  Rather than attempt to escalate prices for either fuel, as well as the conversion kits, we elected to do all calculations without allowance for inflation or other factors.  We believe it is likely that the spread between gasoline and propane is more likely to widen with time; consequently, the assumption that neither changes into the future is conservative for the analysis.

Average mileage for Avon Lake police cruisers running on gasoline was obtained from city records and equaled 12.7 mpg.  Average mileage for the same vehicles owned and operated by other police in other portions of the country but running on propane was used was 11.1 mpg, as documented from those sources.  Actual mileage strongly effects the calculated ROI.

Economic justification for conversion of city vehicles to bi-fuel capability was done examining a ten year period of managed conversions.  Practically, life expectancy for a police cruiser is 100,000-125.000 mi.  For the city of Avon Lake, who averages 25,000 mi/yr for cruisers, this forecasts a useful life of 4-5 years.  Consequently, a plan was established whereby a mix of 2011 and 2013, for a total of five existing vehicles, would be converted in the first year.  In the second year, three new 2014 vehicles would be converted increasing the total fleet to eight.  In year three, two additional new conversions will be done, using funds from accrued savings, bringing the total fleet to ten.  Thereafter, each year two vehicles would be retired and their bi-fuel equipment removed and installed on two new vehicles, maintaining a ten vehicle fleet throughout the project period.  Costs for salvaging and reusing the equipment will be paid for out of cost savings accrued.

Once the loan has been repaid, Avon Lake will net an annual savings of $16,700 per year.  Effectively, the state loan provides necessary seed capital to initiate the program, which then pays for itself thereafter.

Currently, propane has a price advantage over ULR gasoline of $1.30/gal.  Avon Lake experience shows that Crown Vic cruisers average 12.7 mi/gal.  Experience from police in other parts of the country, both northern and southern locations, indicates Crown Vic average mileage using propane to be 11.1 mi/gal.  Combined effects forecast that using propane will allow the City to operate the bi-fuel fleet for 69% of costs for gasoline.

Propane is likely to remain at a cost advantage to gasoline due to increasing supplies from increased natural gas production.  In particular, natural gas from local fracturing efforts contains greater LPG content than natural gas from Gulf Coast production.  Consequently, it is more likely that propane price may fall slightly due to increasing supply.

Gasoline, being a function of crude oil cost is likely to remain steady.  World wide demand for crude, currently down due to reduced economic activity, will increase with recovering global economies, most notably China.  While domestic production is increasing, this phenomena will help with US balance of payments but is not likely to result in lowering price.

For the analysis, we chose to keep propane and gasoline prices constant throughout the project period.  We recognize that prices will change but believe those changes will generally be to the benefit of propane, which makes our analysis conservative

Because the loan repayment is a cost paid out of net cost savings, ROI varies year by year.  Beginning the first year of loan repayment, ROI through that year equals 70% calculated as sum of total project investment divided by the sum of total benefits accrued.  Once the loan is repaid, net cost savings exceed investment cost in every year, and ROI increases in every year forward.  Because we planned this project based upon a ten year life, we elected to report the ROI in this request as that at the end of the plan period; although, the project is self perpetuating and financially self sustaining out of the savings enjoyed from the use of propane fuel.  See attached spreadsheet.
	Please outline your preferred loan repayment structure At a minimum please include the following the entities responsible for repayment of the loan all parties responsible for providing match amounts and an alternative funding source in lieu of collateral Applicants will have two years to complete their project upon execution of the loan agreement and the repayment period will begin upon the final disbursement of the loan funds A description of expected savings over the term of the loan may be used as a repayment sourceRow1: The City of Avon Lake is responsible for the repayment of the loan.
The City of Avon Lake is responsible for providing matching funds.

If the City of Avon Lake is awarded the loan, then they would convert 5 vehicles to propane in 2013 at a total investment of $36,500 with a LGIF Loan of $29,250.  In 2014 3 vehicles will be converted to propane at a total investment of $19,500.  

The LGIF Loan would be paid back from the net savings a year from converting and using propane instead of gasoline.  In 2013 the savings would be $11,558 and in 2014 the savings would be $16,240, and in 2015 and going forward the savings would be $20,300 based on traveling 25,000 miles per year with a propane cost of $1.96.  With this business model the loan will be paid within three years or at the latest 2017.  See the expense and revenue sheet on pages 14 and 15.

As has been said before on page 6 of this application, The fuel cost savings over twelve years totals $230,800.

Our economic analysis was prepared on the basis that the loan be repaid as fast as accrued savings allow.  Our plan is to monitor the mileage of converted vehicles and compute savings accrued based upon prevailing prices for propane and gasoline.  Gasoline avoidance charges will be computed from historical mpg of 12.7 and actual miles used to each vehicle.  Propane costs will be actual experience.

If accrued savings fail to cover minimum repayments required, the necessary balance will be paid from the General Fund of the City.
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